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Illinois Commerce Commission 
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Springfield, Illinois 62701 

Re: APN Starfirst, LP 

Dear Commission: 

Order # - 15-0362 

PowerNet 

In connection with the 2014 Annual Report filed on May 18, 2015 by APN Starfirst, LP, ("APNSF") the 
management and President of the company petitioned that the financial information submitted to the 
Illinois Commerce Commission in its annual report receive confidential treatment. 

After review by the Commission regarding the confidential request, the Illinois Commerce Commission 
granted that the 2014 Annual report for APN Starfirst, LP be afforded proprietary treatment by Order 
dated June 3, 2015. 

A copy of the 2014 Annual Report and confidential financial information for public disclosure is being 
submitted to the Commission this 8'd day of July, 2015. 

Should you have any questions or require any additional information, please do not hesitate to contact 
me at (610) 372-8500 Ext. 1012, or by email at gcarter@americanpowernet.com. 

Regards, 

.~€.~~ 
Chief Financial Officer 
American PowerNet Management, LP 
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ARES Reporting Form: To be submitted annually by April 30 

ARES Annual (2014) Recertification under 83 IL Adm. Code 451 

Section 451. 710 General Provisions for Reporting Requirements 

a) All ARES shall, at all times, continue to remain in compliance with the provisions of tl1e Act 
and this Part, as now or hereafter amended. If an ARES received a certificate before the 
effective date of any provision of this Part, which provision applies to applicants seeking 
certification to serve customers with the same electrical demand or usage characteristics as 
the ARES, the ARES must demonstrate that it has come into compliance with such provision 
no later tlian April 30 of the year following the year during which such amendment took 
effect. 

b) No later than April 30 of each year, each ARES shall file all reports required under this 
Subpart. Reports shall be under oath, contain a cover letter title "Part 451 Continuing 
Compliance" and be filed witli the Chief Clerk of the Commission with copies provided to 
the Office of Retail Market Development - ARES and the Financial Analysis Division -
ARES or their successors. The reports shall be identified with the name of the ARES as it 
appears in the most recent Commission order granting the ARES ce11ification, as well as any 
post-certification name changes. 

c) For each supporting piece of documentation the ARES provides, it shall specifically state 
how this information complies with each applicable subsection of this Part 451. 

d) All reports shall provide the name, telephone number, email address and mailing address of 
at least one person to address questions from Commission Staff pertaining to that report. 

e) All rep011s made to the Commission by any ARES, other tl1an ARES certified under Subpart 
E of tlris Part, and the contents of the reports shall be open to public inspection, unless 
otlierwise ordered by the Commission. The reports shall be preserved in the office of tlie 
Commission. 

f) Any ARES acquiring customers from another ARES shall report any such purchase or 
transfer of customer accounts no later than 30 days after the execution of the transaction. Any 
ARES receiving customer accounts from another ARES shall be responsible to demonstrate 
its ability to meet the applicable financial, managerial and technical requirements. 

g) The compliance filing shall include the applicant's name and street address and the names 
and addresses of all the ARES's affiliated companies involved in electric retail sales or 
purchases in North America. 

Each ARES shall submit a rep01i identified with the name of the ARES as it appears in tl1e most recent 
Commission order granting the ARES certification. 

ARES Name (including all d/b/a): APN Starfirst, LP 

ICC Docket# for cunent certification: 11-0377 
Contact person for issues related to processing the ARES continuing compliance reports: 

Name: Eugene F Carter, Jr 
Title: Controller 

Rev 4-4-14 



ARES Reporting Form: To be submitted annually by April 30 

Direct Telephone Number: (610) 372-8500 Ext 1012 
Email Address: gcarter@americanpowernet.com 
Mailing Address: 45 Commerce Drive, Wyomissing, PA 19610 

ARES Street Address: 
Street number and name 
City, State abbreviation, and ZIP code 

45 Commerce Drive 
Wyomissing, PA 19610 

Affiliated Companies Name, Contact information, and Address: 

Affiliate' s name 
Street number and name 
City, State abbreviation, and ZIP code 
Telephone Number 

American PowerNet Management, LP 

45 Commerce Drive 

Wyomissing, PA 19610 

(610) 372-8500 

THE ANSWERS TO THE FOLOWING QUESTIONS IN SECTION 451.740 ARE INCLUDED AS 
SECTION 1 

Section 451. 740 Financial Reporting Requirements 

The ARES shall provide a copy of only those documents that the ARES requires to demonstrate that it 
continues to possess sufficient financial resources to serve the retail customers for which it has received 
a certificate of service authority. The applicable documents shall be submitted at the times specified 
below: 

a) An ARES that seeks to demonstrate that it maintains sufficient financial resources to provide 
the services for which it has received a certificate of service authority using the criteria set 
forth in subsection (a)(l ), (a)( 4) or (a)(5) of Section 451.110, 451.220 or 451.320 or Section 
451.51 O(b), (c) or (d) shall submit a copy of the latest ratings report presenting the 
commercial paper or long-term credit or obligation ratings of the ARES, creditors or 
guarantors, as applicable, from the ratings agencies between April 1 and April 30 of each 
year and within 15 days following any downgrade of such ratings previously filed with the 
Commission to a rating below A-1 or A-, if issued from Standard & Poor's or its successor, 
P-1 or A3, if issued from Moody's Investors Service or its successor, or F-1 or A-, if issued 
from Fitch Ratings or its successor. Within 30 days after a downgrade of the commercial 

Rev 4-4-14 



ARES Reporting Form: To be submitted annually by April 30 

certify it is a member of one or more RTOs and purchases 100% of its physical electric 
energy from the RTOs for delivery to the service territories of the utilities for which the 
applicant is seeking a certificate. 

i) Each ARES is required to certify that the most recent copy of its license or pem1it bond on 
file with the Commission is current and in full effect. In the event the original license or 
permit bond on file with the Commission is replaced or modified, the ARES shall submit the 
new copy of its license or permit bond pursuant to Section 451.50. 

j) Insurance. Between April 1 and April 30 of each year, an ARES required to have in force 
commercial general liability insurance pursuant to Section 451.11 O(b) shall submit proof of 
that insurance in an amount not Jess than that in force when the ARES was granted its 
certificate of service authority. In addition, the ARES shall demonstrate that its commercial 
general liability insurance is effective for a period of not less than one year. 

Section 451.750 Managerial Reporting Requirements 

a) An ARES shall certify during April of each year that it continues to maintain the required 
managerial qualifications for the service authority granted in its certificate. An ARES that 
meets the managerial qualifications requirements by entering into one or more contracts with 
others to provide the required services must identify each agent or contractor on whom the 
ARES relies to meet the requirements of this Part and must certify that the agent or 
contractor will comply with all Sections of this Part applicable to the function or functions to 
be performed by the respective agent or contractor. 

b) Any changes in personnel, agents or contractors in the past calendar year that were used to 
meet the managerial qualifications shall be addressed in the ammal compliance filing by 
providing evidence showing how the ARES is continuing to meet the managerial 
qualifications. 

Section 451.760 Technical Reporting Requirements 

a) An ARES shall certify during April of each year that it continues to maintain the required 
technical qualifications for the service authority granted in its certificate. An ARES that 
meets the technical qualifications requirements by entering into one or more contracts with 
others to provide the required services must identify each agent or contractor on whom the 
ARES relies to meet the requirements of this Part and must certify that the agent or 
contractor will comply with all Sections of this Part applicable to the function or functions to 
be performed by the respective agent or contractor. 

b) Any changes in personnel, agents or contractors in the past calendar year that were used to 
meet the teclmical qualifications shall be addressed in the ammal compliance filing by 
providing evidence showing how the ARES is continuing to meet the technical 
qualifications. 

Rev 4-4-14 



ARES Reporting Form: To be submitted annually by April 30 

Section 451. 770 Kilowatt-hour Reporting Requirement 

No later than March I of every year, each ARES shall file with the Chief Clerk of the Commission, and 
provide to the Energy Division - ARES and the Financial Analysis Division - ARES or their 
successors, a report stating the total annual kilowatt-hours delivered and sold to retail customers within 
each utility service territory and the total annual kWh delivered and sold to retail customers in all utility 
service territories in the preceding calendar year. 

PLEASE SUBMIT THE ANNUAL KILOWATT-HOUR REPORT SEPARATE FROM THE PART 
451 CONTINUING COMPLIANCE REPORT. The kilowatt-hour Report should be titled "Annual 
Kilowatt-hour Report". Please state the total annual kilowatt-hours delivered and sold to retail 
customers within each utility service territory, the total annual kWh delivered and sold to retail 
customers in all utility service territories, and the calendar year being reported. 

Section 451.50 License or Permit Bond Requirements 

ARES (required to submit a license or permit bond pursuant to Section 451.50) shall submit a copy of 
their current license or permit bond as paii of this annual recertification report. In the event that a 
license or permit bond was modified from the previous license or pe1mit bond filed with the Chief Clerk 
of the Commission, the ARES shall file an additional copy of the modified bond with the Chief Clerk of 
the Commission and provide a copy of that bond to the Financial Analysis Division pursuant to Section 
451.SO(c). 

In the event tlmt a license or permit bond is cancelled, expires or is drawn upon, the ARES shall execute 
and maintain an additional or replacement bond such that the cumulative value of all outstai1ding bonds 
never falls below the ainount required in subsection (a) of this Section. The ARES shall file a copy of 
the additional or replacement bond with the Chief Clerk of the Commission and provide a copy to the 
Financial Analysis Division - ARES pursuant to Section 451.50(b ). 

Please send the signed and notarized annual reports to: 

Chief Clerk's Office 
Illinois Commerce Commission 
527 East Capitol Avenue 
Springfield, IL 62701 

Separate copies.for the Office of Retail Market Development, Financial Analysis Division and 
Consumer Services Division may be placed in same envelope and the Chi~f Clerk's Office will distribute 
them. Please mark each copy as a "Copy" and include one the of the division titles.for each copy as 
applicable. 

Rev 4-4-14 



Section 451.740 Financial Reporting Requirements: 

a. APN Starfirst, LP is a privately held company and does not maintain a rating from any 

agencies. 

b. The credit that demonstrates financial resources for Illinois for certification has not 

changed or been modified. 

c. APN Starfirst, LP served clients in the State of Illinois for calendar year 2014. The 

expected peak hourly demand for calendar year 2015 is expected to be-KW. 

d. This section does not apply to APN Starfirst,, LP as the Applicant does not use single 

billing services. 

e. To demonstrate that APN starfirst, LP maintains sufficient financial resources to provide 

services to contracted retail customers with electrical demands of a minimum of one 

megawatt in Illinois, the Combined Audited Financial Statement for American PowerNet 

Management, LP and its Affiliates will be provided upon release as Attachment A. 

f. This does not apply as any retail customers served and contracted with APN Starfirst, LP 

would be customers with a maximum electrical demands of one megawatt or more. 

g. 1. The RTO Agreement with MISO included as Attachment "B". The Power Purchase 

Agreement with EDF Trading has been provided as Attachment "C". 

h. APN Starfirst, LP provided services to one retail customer under contract in the State of 

Illinois for the year 2014. APN Starfirst, LP currently has a etter of Credit in 

place as collateral with MISO, a .. Surety Bond in place in favor of The People of 

the State of Illinois, as well as a Third party Guarantee with EDF Trading on behalf of 

APN Starfirst, LP provided by PPG Industries. A current long-term contract is in place for 

PPG Industries, a customer since November 2003. Attachment C will supply copies of 

the credit facilities from Banks for APN Starfirst, LP and American PowerNet 

Management, LP. 

i. Exhibit Attachment "D" is the renewal for the Bond Compliance. 

j. Exhibit Attachment "E" shall demonstrate that its commercial general liability insurance 

is in effect for a period of not less than one year. 



Section 451.750 Managerial Reporting Requirements: 

a. APN Starfirst, LP is an independent company not affiliated with any utility or marketer 

or contractors. 

b. There have been no material changes in personnel that would affect the annual 

Technical Reporting Compliance for APN Starfirst, LP. 

Section 451.760 Technical reporting Requirements: 

a. APN Starfirst, LP is an independent company not affiliated with any utility or marketer 

or contractors. 

b. There have been no material changes in personnel that would affect the annual 

Technical Reporting Compliance for APN Starfirst, LP. 

Managerial and Technical Qualifications - Attachment F 



VERIFICATION 

ST A TE OF Pennsylvania) 

COUNTY OF Berks) 

R Scott Helm, being first duly sworn, deposes and says that she/he is [the] President [of] APN 

Starfirst, LP ; that he has read the foregoing Annual ARES Continuing Compliance Report of APN 

Starfirst, LP, and all of the attachments accompanying and referred to within the Annual ARES 

Continuing Compliance Report; and that the statements and information contained in the Annual 

ARES Continuing Compliance Report and the attachments are true, correct and complete to the best 

of his knowledge, information and belief. APN Starfirst, LP will remain in continuing compliance 

with all requirements of the Illinois Public Utilities Act and 83 IL Adm ode 451. 

R. Scott Helm 
President 
Contact Phone# (610) 372-8500 

Subscribed and sworn before me 

[Stamp of Notary] NOTARIAL SEAL 
LINDA F JABLONSKI 

Notary Public 
WYOMISSING BORO, BERKS COUNTY 
My Commission Expires Jun 2, 2015 
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AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP 
AND AFFILIATES d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
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mlfEALAN ROSS & COMPANY, PC 
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mB'JlALAN ROSS & COMPANY, PC 
m'.i'ICERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

l O Hearthstone Court, Suite l 00, Reading, PA 19606 

Phone: 610-779-9555 • Fax:6 l 0-779-9777 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Partners of 
American Powernet Management, LP and Affiliates 
d/b/a American Powernet 

Report on tlte Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of American Powernet 
Management, LP and Affiliates d/b/a American Powernet (a partnership) as of December 31, 2014 and 
2013, and the related consolidated statements of income, Partners' equity and cash flows for the years 
then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for tlte Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America; 
this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order 
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no 
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 

www.rosscpa.com 



Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of American Powemet Management, LP and Affiliates d/b/a American 
Powemet (a partnership) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows, for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United State of America. 

Reading, Pennsylvania 
May 6,2015 



AMRRICAN POWBRNET MANAOEMRNT, LP AND APFILIATES 
dlb/aAMERICAN POWERNRT 

ASSETS 

CURRENT ASSIITS 
Qi.sh and cash equivalents 
Acoounts rea:lvable 
Olhet receivable 
Investments 
Prepaid expomes 

COMBINED BALANCE SHBBT 
DliCEMBBR 31, 2014 ANO 2013 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSBTS 

EQUIPMENT 
Fhuumiand equipment 

NET EQUIPMENT 

OTHER ASSHTS 
Security deposit 
Investment, other 
ln!angiblc &Wets, net 

TOT AL 0111ER ASSETS 

TOTAL ASSETS 

Su aecompanylng nole5 

2014 2013 

------' 

LIABILITIES AND PARlNERS' HQUJTY 

CURRENT J,IAHIJ.ITIHS 
Acoounls payable 
Note payable - line of credit 
Suuurily deposits payable 
Auction receipts payable 
Accrued gross receipts tax 

TOTAL CURRENT LJABILITIES 

NONCURRBNT LIABILITIF.S 
Dofom:d compem111tion 

TOT AL NONCURRilNT T.IABILJTlliS 

TOT AL LIABILITIES 

PARTNER'S EQUITY 
Partners capital 
Accumulated other comprehenRivc income (loss) 

Unrealized gain {loss) on investments 

TOTALPARTNERS'EQIDTY 

TOTAL LIABIUl'lES AND PARlNERS' EQUlTY 

2014 2013 



AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF INCOME 
For the Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

REVENUE 
Management fee income 
Specialized services, commissions and other fees 
Energy purchases 

TOTAL REVENUE 

Less: Cost of goods sold 

Gross Profit 

GENERAL AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) 
Interest income 
Interest expense 
Net gains (loss) 

NET OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES) 

NET INCOME 

See accompanying notes 
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AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN PARTNERS' EQUITY 
For Years Ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 

Balance at January 1, 2013 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income: 
Change in unrealized loss on investments 

Total comprehensive income 

Partner withdrawals 

Balance at December 31, 2013 

Net income 

Other comprehensive income: 
Change in unrealized loss on investments 

Total comprehensive income 

Partner withdrawals 

Balance at December 31, 2014 

Partners' 
Capital 

See accompanying notes 

s 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Income (loss) Total 



AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

COMBINED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
For the Years End December 31, 2014 and 2013 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Net income 
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash from operating activities: 

Depreciation 
Amortization 
Unrealized gains (loss) on investments 

Changes in: 
Accounts receivable 
Investments 
Prepaid expenses 
Security deposit 
Accounts payable 
Nate payable - line of credit 
Security deposits payable 
Auction receipts payable 
Accrued gross receipts tax 
Deferred compensation 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchases of equipment 
Purchase of investments 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Repayment of long-term debt 
Partner withdrawals 

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 

SUPPLEMENT AL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION 
Cash paid during the year for interest 

See accompanying notes 
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AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 

American Powernet Management, LP and Affiliates d/b/a American Powemet financial 
statements represent the combined financial statements of American Po:wemet Management, 
LP, American Powernet Services, LP and APN Starfirst, LP. American Powernet 
Management, LP and Affiliates d/b/a American Powemet derives revenues from commission 
earnings and consulting for management services performed. 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of Combination: 

The combined financial statements of the American Powernet Management, LP and Affiliates 
d/b/a American Powemet include the accounts of American Powernet Management, LP, 
American Powernet Services, LP and APN Starfirst. Combined financial statements are 
presented due to common ownership among the entities. All significant intercompany 
accounts and transactions have been eliminated. 

Use of Estimates: 

The preparation of combined financial statements in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at 
the date of the combined financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the reported period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents: 

The Companies consider all highly-liquid, short-term investments with an original maturity of 
three months or less to be a cash equivalent. 

Accounts Receivable: 

Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The 
Companies determine the allowance for doubtful accounts based on historical write-off 
experience, and review of the aging and collectability of outstanding amounts. Account 
balances are charged off against the allowance after all means of collection have been 
exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts was $0 for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. 

7 



AMERJCAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERJCAN POWERNET 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 

Note I. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Equipment: 

Equipment is stated at cost. Major renewals are capitalized while replacements, maintenance 
and repairs, which do not improve or extend the life of the respective assets are expensed 
currently. When an asset is disposed of, the asset and related accumulated depreciation are 
eliminated and any gain or loss on the transaction is included in income. 

Depreciation: 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the following useful lives: 

Fixtures and Equipment 
Transportation 

Intangible Assets: 

5 -10 years 
5 years 

Intangible assets consist of internal use software amortized over 15 years and the costs to 
obtain a trademark and consist of the following at December 31: 

Cost 
Accumulated amortization 

Deposits: 

Deposits are recorded as current liabilities until the related sale is recognized and the deposit is 
applied against the amount due from the customer. 

Income Taxes: 

The Companies are treated as pass-through entities for federal and state income tax purposes. 
Consequently, federal and state income taxes are not payable by, or provided by the Company. 
The partners are taxed individually on their share of the Company's earnings. The Company's 
net income or loss is allocated among the partners in accordance with their pro-rata share of 
the Company. 

8 



AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued) 

Comprehensive.income: 

Generally accepted accounting principles establish standards for reporting and presentation of 
comprehensive income and its components. Comprehensive income consists of net income 
and net unrealized gains or losses on futures contracts and other securities and is presented in 
the combined statements of changes in partners' equity. 

Other comprehensive income includes unrealized holding loss on futures contracts of $0 as of 
December 31, 2014 and umealized losses~n other securities. 

Advertising Costs: 

Advertising costs, which are all other than direct-response advertising, are charged to 
operations when incurred. Advertising costs charged to operations for the year ended 

December 31, 2014 was -

Subsequent Events: 

In preparing these financial statements, the Companies have evaluated events and transactions 
for potential recognition or disc!Osure through May 6, 2015, the date the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 

Note2. Cash 

The Companies routinely maintain cash balances in excess of federally insured limits at 
several local banking institutions. 

Note 3. Investments 

Management classifies all of its investments in futures contracts as available for sale and 
accordingly carries its investments at estimated fair market value. Unrealized gains and losses 
on the contracts are recorded as a separate component of other comprehensive income. 
Realized gains and losses are included in the net income of the Company, and the cost of the 
contracts is computed using the specific identification method. 

9 
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AMERJCAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERJCAN POWERNET 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 

Note 3. Investments (Continued) 

Market values of the futures contracts are summarized as follows at December 31, 2014: 

Gross 
Unrealized 

Holding 
Cost Gain (Loss) Market Value 

Futures Contracts 

Note 4. Note Payable - Bank 

The Companies have lines of credit available totalin ank. The 
lines consist of a working capital line of credit of 
to fund client related letters of credit to secure purchases of electricity, and a~e 
of credit to support the relationship with a single, publicly traded company. The lines of credit 
are subject to an annual renewal o~ The terms of the working capital and 
~redit facility provide for monthly interest payments at the bank's prime rate 
(3.25% at December 31, 2014) on outstanding balances. These notes are secured by a first lien 
priority security interest in the Companies' assets and cross corporate guarantees of American 
Powernet Services, LP, APN Starfirst, LP and American Powernet Management, LP. The 
working capital line of credit is personally guaranteed by the partners of the Companies. -

redit facility provides for monthly interest payments at 1.50% and is guaranteed 
by a single, publicly traded company. At December 31, 2014, the Companies had borrowed 
-n the working capital line of credit. 

The Companies have an-line of credit available fro~ank. The terms of the 
agreement provide for monthly interest payments at the Daily LIBOR rate plus 1. 75% (2.379% 
at December 31, 2014) on any outstanding balances. The note is secured by customer security 
deposits and an interest in the Companies' assets and cross corporate guarantees of American 
Powernet Services, LP, APN Starfirst, LP and American Powernet Management, LP. The line 
of credit is personally guaranteed by the partners of the Companies. 

10 



AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 

Note 5. Long - Term Debt 

Long-term debt is summarized as follows: 

American Powemet Services, LP 

Note payable to Santander Bank with monthly payments of-lus interest at 
LIBOR plus 1.35 basis points, (1.560% at December 3 ~ The note is 

. personally guaranteed by the partners of the Company and is additionally secured by 
a trust account of the partners of the Company. Final payment o_.as made in 
2013. 

Note 6. Deferred Compensation 

American Powemet Services, LP makes discretionary contributions to a trust for certain 
employees to provide for deferred compensation. The company did not make any employer 
contributions to the trust during the calendar year 2014. 

Note 7. Lease Commitments 

The Companies entered into a lease with a related party for office space, and moved into it's 
new office location in early 2010. The lease provides for an initial term of ten years through 
December 2019. The Companies have the option to lease the building for an additional five 
year term. The lease provides for an initial lease payment of-er year and it is 
subject to future increases as agreed to by the parties. The companies paid-for lease 
payments in 2014. 

Note 8. Commitments 

The Companies are parties to sales contracts with certain customers with terms ranging from 
one year to three years, all with one-year renewal terms at the option of the Companies or the 
customer. 

The Companies are parties to supply agreements with certain suppliers, all of which are 
cancelable upon notification. 

II 



AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

NOTES TO COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
December 31, 2014 

Note 9. Income Taxes 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require management 
to evaluate tax positions taken by American Powernet and recognize a tax liability (or asset) if 
the organization has taken an uncertain position that more likely than not would not be 
sustained upon examination by the Internal Revenue Service. Management has analyzed the 
tax positions taken by American Powernet, and has concluded that as of December 31, 2014, 
there are no uncertain positions taken or expected to be taken that would require recognition of 
a liability (or asset) or disclosure in the financial statements. American Powernet is subject to 
routine audits by taxing jurisdictions; however, there are currently no audits for any tax 
periods in progress. Management believes it is no longer subject to income tax examinations 
for years prior to December 31, 2012. 

12 



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 



IRPEALAN ROSS & COMPANY. PC 
mfi1'CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

l O Hearthstone Court, Suite 100, Reading, PA 19606 

Phone: 610-779-9555 • Fax:6 l 0-779-97 77 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
ON COMBINING INFORMATION 

To the Partners of 
American Powemet Management, LP and Affiliates 
d/b/a American Powemet 

Our report on our audit of the combined financial statements of American Powemet Management, LP 
and Affiliates d/b/a American Powemet (a partnership) for 2014 appears on page 1. The audit was made 
for the purpose of forming an opinion on the combined financial statements taken as a whole. The 
combining information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the combined financial 
statements rather than to present the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the 
individual companies. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audits of the combined financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in 
relation to the combined financial statements taken as a whole. 

Reading, Pennsylvania 
May 6, 2015 

' 
pc__ 

www.rosscpa.com 
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AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP ANO AFFILIATES 
d.ob/11 AMERICAN POWERNET 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 
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AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

REVENUE 
Management fee income 
Specialized services, 

commissions and other fees 
Energy purchases 

TOTAL REVENUE 

COST OF GOODS SOLD 

. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE 
EXPENSES 

INCOME FROM OPERATIONS 

OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 
Interest Income 
Interest expense 
Net gains (loss) on Investments 

NET OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE) 

NET INCOME 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF INCOME 
Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Combined 

Eliminations 
and 

Adjustments 
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American 
Powernet 

Services, LP 
APN 

Starfirst, LP 

American 
Powernet 

Management, LP 



Office salaries 
Officer salary 

Total Salaries 

Advertising 
Amortization 
Bad Debt Expense 
Bank charges 
Contributions 
Deferred compensation 
Depreciation 
Dues and subscriptions 
Employee benefits 
Freight and postage 
Insurance 

Legal and accounting 
Management fee 
Meals and entertainment 
Miscellaneous 

Office supplies 
Outside services 
Payroll taxes 
Penalties and fines 
Permits and licenses 
Rent 

Repairs and maintenance 
Subcontract services 
Taxes 
Telephone 
Travel 
Utllltles 

AMERICAN POWERNET MANAGEMENT, LP AND AFFILIATES 
d/b/a AMERICAN POWERNET 

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
Year Ended December 31, 2014 

APN 

TOTAL GENERAL AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
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ATTACHMENT B 

SECTION 451.740 

AGREEMENT WITH RTO "MISO" 



Midwest/SO 
..... We manage power. 

January 22, 2007 

Mr. David Butsack 
APN StarFirst, LP 
867 Berkshire Blvd. 
Suite 101 
Wyomissing, PA 19610 

Dear Mr. Butsack: 

Michael P. Holstein 
Vice President & Chief Financial 
Officer 
Direct Dial: 317-249-5525 
E-mail: mholstein@midwestiso.org 

Enclosed please find a fully executed copy of Attachment W - Market Participant Agreement. 
Please note the Midwest ISO replaced the first page of Attachment W with a revised first page 
that contains one and only one change -- in paragraph one the phrase "Midwest Independent 
Transmission System, Inc." was changed to "Midwest Independent Transmission System 
Operator, Inc.''. 

Regards, 

Michael P. Holstein 
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer 

MPH/pe 

Midwest Independent Transmission Systen1 Operator, Inc. 
701 City Center Drive Cammi, IN 46032 

www.midwestiso.org 



MidwestlSO Original Service Agreement No. 7281 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. 1 

Market Participant Agreement 

For 

APN Starfirst, LP 

Under The 

Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc., 
FERC Electric Tariff, Open Access Transmission and Energy Markets Tariff 

Third RevisedVolume No. 1 

MISO MP A Designation No.: MP A.AMER 



Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. I 

Substitute First Revised Sheet No. 1690 
Superseding First Revised Sheet No. 1690 

ATTACHMENT W 

FORM OF MARKET PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT 

1.0 This Market Participant Agreement ("MP Agreement"), dated as of June 14, 2006, is 
entered into, by and between the Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, 
Inc., ("Transmission Provider") and APN Starfirst, LP ("Market Participant"). 

2.0 The Market Participant has been determined by the Transmission Provider to be a Market 
Participant as defined in the Tariff. 

3.0 The Market Participant agrees to supply the Transmission Provider with any and all 
information the Transmission Provider deems reasonably necessary in accordance with 
Good Utility Practice. 

4.0 The Transmission Provider agrees to provide services to the Market Participant upon a 
request by an authorized representative of the Market Participant. The Market Participant 
agrees to take and pay for the requested services in accordance with the provisions of the 
Tariff and this MP Agreement. 

Issued by: Ronald R. McNamara, Issuing Officer Effective: March 1, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed to comply with the November 8, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-691-000 and EL04-I 04-000 
(Midwest !11depe11dent Transmission System Operator, Inc., 109 FERC If 61,157 (2004)). 



Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. I 

Substitute First Revised Sheet No. 1691 
Superseding First Revised Sheet No. 1691 

5.0 Market Participant status under the Tariff shall commence upon execution of this MP 
Agreement by the Transmission Provider. Service(s) under the Tariff shall commence at 
the time of the requested service(s) commencement date. 

6.0 This MP Agreement shall tenninate on such date as mutually agreed upon by the Parties. 

7.0 The Market Participant shall provide written notification of any unexpected material 
adverse changes in circumstances that may affect the Market Participant's status as a 
Market Participant, within twenty-four (24) hours of having learned of the change. 

Issued by: Ronald R. McNamara, Issuing Officer Effective: March 1, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed to comply with the November 8, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-69 J-OOO and EL04- J 04-000 
(Midwest Independent 1i·ansmission System Operator, Inc., I 09 FERC ~ 61,157 (2004)). 



Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. 1 

Fourth Substitute Original Sheet No. 1692 
Superseding Third Substitute Original Sheet No. 1692 

8.0 The Market Participant shall notify the Transmission Provider in writing of any material 
adverse change in circumstances that the Market Participant learns of or intends to 
implement and may affect its status at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the change. 

9.0 Any notice or request made to either of the parties to this MP Agreement shall be made to 
the following representatives: 

Title: 
Address: 

Transmission Provider 

Contract Administrator 
70 I City Center Drive 
Carmel, IN 46032 

Market Participant 

Issued by: Ronald R. McNamara, Issuing Officer Effective: March I, 2005 
Issued on: January 19, 2005 
Filed to comply with the December 20, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-691-000 and EL04-J 04-000 
(Midwest independent Tran.rmission System Operator, Inc., 109FERC1161,285 (2004)). 



. ' 

Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. 

Substitute First Revised Sheet No. 1693 
Superseding First Revised Sheet No. 1693 

I 0.0 The Tariff, in its entirety, is incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

JN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this MP Agreement to be executed by their 
respective authorized officials. 

Market Participant 

By: c)'-:.,v·£,.fj}, (~~ By: ~~..-::::;: 
Name: Name: /)q1J;'O l?u7SftcK 

Transmission Provider 

Title: ~1""". -.--~""1"""18"""'._"""------...:.:ll;tl.;;~: VP tJ EL:J1/5/; 'CS v. /)// ;9L j .5/S 
D' lo ten& Dat : (,(/cS/ol/(; 

ate :!dent & Chtef'Ffn1111clal Officer 

f -8,~-CJ7 

Issued by: H.onald R. McNamara, Issuing Officer Effective: March I, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed lo comply with the November 8, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-691-000 und EL04-104-000 
(Midwesr Jndependenl Transmission System Operator, Inc .. I 09 FERC ~ 6I,157 (2004)). 



Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. 

ATTACHMENTW 

Substitute First Revised Sheet No. I 690 
Superseding First Revised Sheet No. 1690 

FORM OF MARKET PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT 

1.0 This Market Participant Agreement ("MP Agreement"), dated as of June 14, 2006, is 
entered into, by and between the Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, 
Inc., ("Transmission Provider") and APN Starfirst, LP ("Market Participant"). 

2.0 The Market Participant has been detennined by the Transmission Provider to be a Market 
Participant as defined in the Tariff 

3.0 The Market Participant agrees to supply the Transmission Provider with any and all 
information the Transmission Provider deems reasonably necessary in accordance with 
Good Utility Practice. 

4.0 The Transmission Provider agrees to provide services to the Market Participant upon a 
request by an authorized representative of the Market Participant. The Market Participant 
agrees to take and pay for the requested services in accordance with the provisions of the 
Tariff and this MP Agreement. 

Issued by: Ronald R. McNamara, Issuing Officer Effective: March 1, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed to comply with the November S, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-691-000 and EL04-1 04-000 
(Midwest 111depe11de11t Transmission Si•stem Operator, Inc., I 09 FERC II 61, 157 (2004)). 



Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. I 

ATTACHMENT W 

Substitute First Revised Sheet No. 1690 
Superseding First Revised Sheet No. 1690 

FORM OF MARKET PARTICIPANT AGREEMENT 

1.0 This Market Participant Agreement ("MP Agreement"), dated as of 
vU!Yt:. tt./1 .;/oo(, , is entered into, by and between the Midwest Independent 

Transmission System, Inc., ("Transmission Provider") and f/l'll S18/?Ei/?ST, L ,0 
("Market Patticipant"). ' 

2.0 The Market Participant has been determined by the Transmission Provider to be a Market 
Participant as defined in the Tariff. 

3.0 The Market Participant agrees to supply the Transmission Provider with any and all 
information the Transmission Provider deems reasonably necessary in accordance with 
Good Utility Practice. 

4.0 The Transmission Provider agrees to provide services to the Market Participant upon a 
request by an authorized representative of the Market Participant. The Market Participant 
agrees to take and pay for the requested services in accordance with the provisions of the 
Tariff and this MP Agreement. 

lssue<I by: Ronald R. McNmnara, Issuing Officer Effective: March I, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed lo comply with the November 8, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-69 l-OOO and EL04- J 04-000 
(Midwest independent Transmission System Operator, Inc., l 09FERC~6l,157 (2004)). 



Midwesl ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. 

Subslitute Firsl Revised Sheet No. 1691 
Superseding Firs! Revised Sheet No. 1691 

5.0 Market Participant status under the Tariff shall commence upon execution of this MP 
Agreement by the Transmission Provider. Service(s) under the Tariff shall commence at 
the time of the requested service(s) commencement date. 

6.0 This MP Agreement shall terminate on such date as mutually agreed upon by the Parties. 

7 .0 The Marke! Pa1ticipant shall provide written notification of any unexpected material 
adverse changes in circumstances that may affect the Marke! Parlicipant's status as a 
Marke! Participant, within twenty-four (24) hours of having learned of the change. 

Issued by: Ronald R. McNamara, Issuing Officer Effeclive: March I, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed to comply with the November 8, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-691-000 and EL04-I 04-000 
(Midwest Independent Transmission System Operator, Inc., I 09 FERC 11 61, 157 (2004)). 



Midwest ISO 
FERC Electric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. I 

Fourth Substitute Original Sheet No. 1692 
Superseding Third Substitute Original Sheet No. 1692 

8.0 The Market Pa1ticipant shall notify the Transmission Provider in writing of any material 
adverse change in circumstances that the Market Pa1ticipant learns of or intends to 
implement and may affect its status at least seventy-two (72) hours prior to the change. 

9.0 Any notice or request made to either of the parties to this MP Agreement shall be made lo 
the following representatives: 

Title: 
Address: 

Transmission Provider 

Contract Administrator 
701 City Center Drive 
Carmel, IN 46032 

Market Pa1ticipant 

Issued by: Ronald R. tvlcNmnara, Issuing Officer Effective: March 1, 2005 
Issued ou: January 19, 2005 
Filed to comply with the December 20, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-69J-OOO and EL04-104-000 
(Midwes/ Jndependenl Transmission System Opera/or, inc., I 09 FERC 11 61,28 5 (2004 )). 



( 

. .vesl ISO 
r10RC Eleclric Tariff, Third Revised Volume No. J 

Substitule Firs! Revised Sheel No. J 693 
Superseding Firs! Revised Sheel No. J 693 

. 10.0 The Tariff, in its entirety, is incorporated herein and made a part hereof. 

IN WJTNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this MP Agreement to be executed by their 
respective authorized officials. 

Transmission Provider 

By ~-e< fj}, /~~ By: '- /i~ 
Name: Name: O!J///D [?u75f}c/;( 

r-ie""hae ..... ll"".""
11

""o1s'"'1e""1n ...... ______ .,J""1l""'I~: VP iJE2o</,57/'CS v f1/f/?Lj.5/.5' 
Dat : 'us/oil(; ee President & Chlef'Flntmelel Officer 

Title: 
Date: 

Issued by: Ronald R. fVlcNmnara, Issuing Officer Effective: March I, 2005 
Issued on: January 7, 2005 
Filed lo comply with the November 8, 2004 Order of the FERC in Docket Nos. ER04-69J-OOO and EL04-J04-000 
(Midil'est Independent 7i·ansmission Spstem Operator, Inc., 109 FERC ~ 6 J ,J 57 (2004)). 



ATIACHMENTC 

SECTION 451.740 

FINANCIAL REPORTING FOR PURCHASE OF POWER 



MASTER POWER PURCHASE AND SALE AGREEMENT 

COVERSHEET 

"fhis Ma.vier Power J)urcha.ye and .S'ale Agree111ent -("lvlC1.'il<!I' Agreen1ent" ) is .tnndc.as ·of Ute -fOllov.1ing <lute: 
Dccc1nber 7, _2011 ("Effective Dute"), 'J'he lvlaster A_grewnenti together \Vi th the exhibits, .schedules and 
any written s~.1pplc1nents .hereto,. the :Party A 'faritT, if _nny, the J>arty B ·r.uri!f, if any, any desii,,rnated 
collaterul, credit support or n1argin .Bgreon1e111 or shnilar .arrangcnu3nl betv,1e~n the Parties and all 
Transactions (including any conflnnotions accepted in accordance \Vith Sectio11 2.3 hereto) shnll ·bc referred 
to as the "1\grec1nenl." 1'he Parties .to this Ad aster Agreen1ent ure the :follo,ving: 

·Party A: EOF Tm ding No1tb America, LLC 
('

1Count-er_party." _01· '~J>url)' A") 

All Notices: 

4700 West Sam Houston Parkway, Suite 250 

Tel: 281-781-0333 

.City/State: Hmc,tml, TX Zip: 7704 l 

Attn: Conh·•ct Administrulion 
l'hone: 281-781-0333 
·Facsimile: 281-653-1454 
Duns: 130385163 
Federal Tax ID Number: 98-0596593 

.Invoices: 
Attn::;Power Accounting 
l'hone:.281-653-1683 
Facsimile: 281 •653cl033 

Scheduling: 
At_tn:-J>o\Yer Scheduling 
Phone: 281-781-0333 
Facsimile: 281'781-0360 

--Confirnu1tions: 
Att1J: ConfinnatiCln Departn1ent 

Phone: 281"65.3-1683 
Facsimile: ·281-653-1033 

Tny1ncnts: 
Attn: -Po\V.er Accounting 
Phone: 281-653-1683 
Facsimile: 281-653-1033 

WirL' 'l)·nnsfer: 
BNK: Wells l'urgo Bunk, N.A. 
ABA: 12 I 000248 
ACCT: 4121947964 

A-PN ·Starfirst, L.P, -('1.Couuter:pnrty" or "Party 
B") 

All Notices: 

4 5. Conunerce Ddve 

Tel: 610-372-8500 

City: Wyomissing, PA Zip: .l 96 LO 

Attn: Contmct Administration 
Phone: 610-372-8500 
Facsimile: ht 0-3 72-9100 
Duns: 14·t.08-1328 
·Federal Tax ID Number: 11-3708349 

Invoices: 
'Attn: Linda Jablonski 
Phone: 610'372-8500 
Facsimile: 6"10.372-9100 

Scheduling: 
Attn: David .Butsack/Brinn Vayda 
Phone: 610-J72-8500 
Facsimile: 6.l0-372-91 O(J 

l)ayntcnts: 
Attn: Linda Jublnnski 
J'honc: 610-372•850(1 
Facsituile: 610,372•9!00 

Wire Transfer: 
BNK: Sovereign Bu11k 
ABA: 231372691 
ACCT:.8031143765 

Credit ,and. Collections: 
Attn: Linda Jablon.i;ki 
.Phone: 610-372-8500 
·facsimile: GI0-372-9100 



Credit Hild Collections: 
Attn: Credit Dcpurunenl 

Phone: 281-781-0333 
Fncsimile: 281-7.81-0360 

Vir'ith uddilionnl .Notices of~m Event ofDefhull or 
Potential Event of Default to: 

Attn: Robert J, Porto - Energy ·Purchasing 
PPG Industries, lnc. 

Phone: 412-434-2521 
Facsimile: 412-434-4002 

With additional Noticc.<>·ofnn Event of Default or 
Potentinl Event of.Default to: 

Attn: General Counsel 
Pax: 28 I -653-14 54 

'J'he 'PnrtiBfi hereby agree that the G.cneral Tcnns and Conditions nre incorporuted l1erci11, nnd to the 
following provisions as provided for in the General 1'ernu; ·nnd Conditions: 

l'arty A Tnriff Tnriff: FERC Rate Schedule Dated: September 22. 201 (I Docket.Number: ER I 0-2794 

]'arty B Tariff Tmiff: Market-Bused Dnled: Jmrn•!)' 7, 2004 Dockcl Number: ER04-226 

A-rticlc 'l\"110 

~rransaction ·1 cm1s lt.nd Conditions 

Article ]lour 

Remedies for Failure 
,10 :Dcliv.cr :or 1~eceive 

ArtiClc:.Five 

-Eventi; ofDeh1ult;-Re1nedies 

• Optional provision in Section 2.4. If not checked, inapplicable. 

• Accelerated 'Payment of Damages. lfnot checked, inapplicable. 

• Cross Defoultfor Party A: 

• Party A: EDF Trading 
Nortl1 America, LLC 

D Other Entity' ____ _ 

• Cross Defoult forParty B: 

Cross Default Amouut: With respect to 
Porty A: three pcrcen\:(3%) ofl'.arty 
A's Shareholder.Equi\y a.' reported hi 
dts:-most -recent ._audited--or~quarterly 
cai1~olidntcd ;financial-s tate1nen ts 

CroSR Default Amount$. ___ _ 

• Party B: APN SterfirHt, L.P. Cro"5 Default Amount: Witluespeet to 
Party B: three percent-(.3(Yo)-oJ.tarty 
B's or it!' Crcdil·St!pport 1~rovider'8 (as 
applicable) Slrnrel1olclerEquity us 
reported i1rlt1-: n1ostreocn!-audite::d or 
quarlerly consolidated finuucial 
~tutetucnts 

D OU1erEntity: _____ _ Cl'oss Defauh Atnoun! ·$ ___ _ 

5.6 Closeout Sctoff 

-. Optio11 /\.(Applicable if no olhcr selection is_nuidl.:.) 

D Oplion B ·-Affiliates Hhnll hnve the tneaning scl forlh in the 
Agrec1nen1 unless olher\vist specified .as folkl\vs: ____ _ 



Article 8 

Credit and Collateral Requirements 

D Option C (No Sctofl) 

8.1 Party A Credit Protection: 

(n) Jiiru1nciul lnfom1ation: 

D Option A 

D Option B Specify: PPG Industries, Inc .. 
• Option C Specify: (l) Fim111ciul in!Onnution requirnd in 
Option·B for Party Band/or its Guarantor; (2) copies of1\ll 
corporate nuthotizations and an)' other docun1onts -\vitb respect 
·to the exec.a1Lio~, delivery and perlOnnancc--0f thi.i.; Agrec1ncnt; 
_(3') ccrtifioalu of.authority .mu\ speci111en signatures of 
individuals-executing this Agrce1nent,,uqy-Confll'n1atio11 and 
each Trunsoction;.and--(4')~ Unifonn ·sales & ·use 1ti>: 
Certificate - MullijuriHdictional nr .other·si1ni1ar U.Pplicable 
re-sale-certificates. 

(b) Credit AHSuranccs: 

D Not Applicable 
·• Applicable 

(c) Collateral Threshold: 

D Not Applicable 
·• Applicable 

If applicable, eoll)plete.the.following: 

Party B Collateral Threshold: $7 Million; provided, however, that Party 
B's Collateral Threshold shall be (iJ the lesser amount of' the Collaterul 
Threshold or !he Guaranty Amoun\, ,if any; and (i.i) zerojf'au Event of 
Defoult.01"Polcntial Event ofDefault with respect to PnrtyB has occu!1'cd 
_and, is continuing· .. 

(d) DoWI)grnde E\;cnt: 

• Nol Applicable 
Q Applicable 

If applimiblc, complete the following: 

D It shall b"a Downgrade Event for Party Bif PmtyB's 
Gm1runtor's Creclit Rating fulb below BBB· from S&P or BnaJ 
fron1 Moody1s or if Jlnrty B i1' no{ rated by either S&J> or 
Moudy'H 

Other: 
Specif)•: ___________________ _ 

(e) Guarantor for J>nny B: p_pG lndustrien 

.Guaruntee A1nount: $7-Million or an an1ounl tnutunlly agreed to 
by the partir;,s_(including being ttgrecd to by PPG 1ndustrit::->, 1nc.) 
frotn tin1e to tinu.: in iH.:cordancc with Varty.B'.s C'.ollatcrnl 



Article HI 

Thresliold as defined above. 

8.2 Party B Crcdil-:Protection: 

(u) Financial.-1nt0nnation: 

0 Option A 
D OptioJJ :B Specify: -------
·• ()ption .C Specify; (I) Financial .infonnution requirod in 
Option B for Party A's Guuranlor; (2) copies-of all corporate 
HUthorizntions and uny othor documents v.•ith respect to the 
cxccution,-delivery and pcrforrnunoe of.U1is Agrcc1ncnt_; (3) 
certificate of·authorhy.and tipcciinen·signatures of-individuals 
executing t11is Agreetuent,.any Confin11atio11.und each 
·rransaction nnd -(4tUnifonn Sales & Use 'l'ax· Certificale -­
Multijurisdiotional or other si.milnr-applicablc resale 
·cerLificates. 

(b) Credit Assurances: 

D Not Applicanle 
• AWlicable 

( c) Collnteral Threshold: 

• Not Applicable 
D Applicable 

Party A Collateral Threshold: $N/ A; provided, however .. •lhut .Party A's 
Collateral Threshold slrnll be (i) the lesser amount of.the Collaleral 
Threshold or the Guaranty Amount, if any; and (ii) zero if an Event of 
Default.or Potcntia!Event of Default with respect lo Party B has occurred 
und ·is continuing. 

(d) Downgrade Event: 

• NorApplieable 
D Applicable 

If applicable, complete the following: 

D It shall bc.uDowngrade.Event for Party A if Party A'.s Credit 
Rating falls:below from S&P or from 
MooOy'..s or if Par~' A -it> not rated by-either S&P or Moo_dy'-s 

D Other: 
Specify: _____ _ 

(e) Guarantor for Purt-y A: Not Applicable 

Guarantee A1nount: $---~ .. ----'or un H1nount-1nulually 
llgr~ud to by the pnrlics fron1 ti1nc to ti1ne in accordance \Vith 
Party A' .s Collateral 'l'hrcshold as defined above. 



.Confidentiality • Confidentiality Applicnhlc D lfnol checked, inapplicuble. 

SchcdulcM D Party A is " Govc1nn1cntal.Enti1Y or Public Power .Systcn1 
0 PartyD i::; a (Jo:vcnunental Enlity.orPublic Po\vcr Syslen1 
0 Add Section.3.4 Ifuol checked, inupplicublc 
D Add Section 8.4 lfnol checked, im1pplicuble 

Other Changes: Applicable Specify, if any: See ·below 

]'url 1. GENERAL TI>RMS AND CONDITIONS. 

(11) Article One shnll be mncnded as follows: 

(i) Seclion 1.12 slmll he.nmended by replacing "issues" with "issuer" in the .fourth line. 

(ii) Section ·1.27 iH an1cnded ·by deleting the phrase ' 1or ·a foreign ·b1u1k ·with n lJ,S. branch" und 
replacing it with the.phrase ·~or a u.s.·brunch ofn foreign bn1ik'1

• 

(iii) Section 1.45 slrnll be amended .by adding the following at the end ofthe definition. "Party B 
shall have tlic right to provide up lo $7 Million in the fonn of n parent guarantee from 'PPG 
"Industries, lnc. as ·J>erforn1ance Assuranc.e 11ereunder, provided that a Downgrade T~vcnt .hns 
not.occurred .with respect Jo PJ>G .lndustries, .Inc .. in which.case -n parent gu~rantee sluill not 
.constitute acceptable Pcrfo1·mance Assurance." 

(iv) Section "1.50 .is -an1ended by chat)gin_g 11 Section 2.4 11 ·to 11 Soction 2;5 11
• 

Jv) Section .J .51 shall be amendecLby.(i) adding the phrnse "for delivery" immediately before the 
:Pl1rase 11 a1 the Delivery ·roint11 ·in ·the secoqd "line .and (ii) ,delctif1:g the -Jj}u·ase l~at .. Buyer's 
optio1111 from-the fifth line.and ·replucing.:.H ,w.ith the follo\ving: ·•1absent a_purchase11

; anO 

(vi) Section J:5o shall be amended by .(i) .deleting llm phrase "at the Delivery 'Point" from the 
·.second'Jin(:, (ii) deleting ·lhe.phrasc "-al 'Scllor>·s optionu·1t.on1 the fitlh line .. and replacc·-it \Vith 
the follo\\'ing: ·~absent .u sule". 

(vii) The following shrill be added 11s • new Section I :62: 

"Merger Event" H1ncans, with -respect -to .u P:artY or it!i Guarantor, and .with .rc~lecl tl) 
Party .A1 -its Gunrantor, that such Party =or its {h1arantor consolidates or u1nalga1natcs ·"\\'ith_, 
or:incrges into. or with, or transfers.substantially all .of its-.assets·to another entity; and (i) 'the 
resulting enti~y fails .to .assiune a"Jl of-·the obligations of.such .Porty hereunder or of such 
Party's Guarantor undor its .guaranty; or (ii) .the ·l)enefits of uny credit support provided 
pursuant to Ar~icle ·8, or nny guaranty_.provided.·by such Pnrty'i;·.G.uurantor, foil to extend ·to 
the perfonnance .by -such resulting, surviving .. or .transferee .entity .of its obligatioIL<; 
·hereunder; or (iii) the resl1l1jng enti~y's crcditworthines.i.; is tnnterially wcnker thnn that of 
such. Piir~y .or its Guarantor. in1111ediately.prior to -such.action:,, 

(viii) The following shall be added us a new Seeli011 1.63: 

11S'/u1rcholdur Equi(l'" 1nen11s, ut.any.ti1nc1 the a1nount.of paid-in onpital in respect of.all 
issued and fully~paid shares of the share capital of the relevant entity; together \Vi th the 
t~ontributed -suqJJus, the ctunul11livc lranslution.udjustn1cnt _(if any) ·and the .rctuinod eurnings 
calc.ulutcd in uccordnncc with gcncrully ·accepted .accounting principles in the country in 
\.Vhich ·thnl entity i~ orgunized, consistently applied. 

(b) Articlr ·r1vo s!u1\I hc :·nnended as follo\VS 

Seclio11 ~.3 is <1111cnded by replacing "1nay" \Vith "shall" in line I. 



(r) Article Five• slmll be amended as follows: 

(i) Section 5.J(a) shall be amended by delcLing "Lhrec (3) Business Days" and rcplncing it with 
"t\Vo (2) Busincs:-; Dny" in the .second line; 

(ii) Scclion 5. l(e) is fllncndecl by adding "or the Collateral Annex hereto" tll ·the end of thttt 
-sub~ection. 

(iii) Section 5. l(h)(ii) slrnll be amended by deleting the followingphrnse from the third and fourth 
line thereof: 11 und such Hiilurc :;hull not be rc1nedied within three (3) BusiJ1cs1; Days after 
wril!_cn notice and inserting in -ith' place the phrase ''nnd -such failure shall not-be rc1uedicd \Vi thin 
t\VO (2) B.usincss Dnys-aflcr written notice:"; 

(iv) A new section 5.1 (h)(e) is added as follows: "n Merger Event occurs with respect to n 
Guarantor.~' 

(v) Section 5.1 is amended by replacing the"." al the end of Clause (hJM thereof with"; or" and 
by adding new Clause (vi) .as follows: 

H(vi) "Such Purty or itti Guanmtor, as applicable: (i_) defaults under a ·Specified Agrectnent 
and .. ufter ~givhi.g effect to .uny app1icablc notice requirc1nent or grace perioQ, there occnrs u 
liquidation of, an .ucceleration of obligatio115 under, or -an eurl_y Lcrininalion of, that Specified 
Agreement; 01· (ii) clcfauhs, _after giv.in_g etlect to :nny ap_plicable -notice .rcquiren1ent .or grace 
period,, in making any payn1ent or delivery-due on the last payment, delivery-or exchange.date 
of, or any payn1cnt on-early tcnnination :of, a Specified A,grce111ent (or such default continues 
for ·at least ·three Business ;D.ays-if1here:is-110 npplicublc 'notice requirement or.:gracc period), 
"'here "Specified Agrecmenl" means any privittcly negotiated ralc"SWap, basi• swap, forward 
·rnte -tr1u1snction, c.onunodity swap1 comtnodity-option> a .purchase .or sale of.a -co1n1nodity1 

equity .or-_cquity index -swap, .equity or equity-inda."\ .option, bond qption, .inlere-st rate option, 
Joreign exchange transaction, cap-=-transactioth floor transaction, cdllar transaction, currcnc_y 
.'i-wap trnnsactions, .cross .. currency· rate sw~p·transuction .. _ourrency·.option or any .other -si1nilar 
trnnsaction-(including any option ·-\Vi th respei;:t:1.o -any of these,transactions-or,ruly-combinalion 
of these transactions)or =~ny other sin1ilar tiansuction ·(who.ther or not documented under or 
effected pursuant to·11 master (!gr.ee1nenl) i1ow eKisting,or'hercaftcr entered .into henvcen Jlarty 
A_, on the one han4, and :P.urty-}~ , on -the other. .For __ purposcs h~reof, u "comn1odity'' has the 
moaning set forth in thc·Commodity£xchange Act(7 U:S.C.§.l(a)(4))." 

(.vi) Section 5.2 is a1nended :by deleting the last sentence ·and replace -lt with the tOllo-\-ving: wrht 
Non~Dcfaulting J>_arty Hhall calculate, in o .conuner.ciully reasonnb1e manner, .-u Scttlc1nent 
A1nount for .eacl1 suoll Tenninaled Transaction or group-ofTe1111inated Trru1sactions a5 .of.the 
·EarJy 1'eLn1ination Date .(or, to the -e.-xtcnt :that .-·in the -reasonable .opinion of the Non­
Dcfnu'lting Party certaiu of ·such Tcnni.nnted Transactions or _group .of T.enninatcc.l 
Tran.r.;aotions are co1n111erciully impracticable -to liquidate m1d lenninule or -tnay -nol be 
liquidated .nnd tenninuted under applicable lav.' on ·the Early T.ennination IJate1 then each 
such Transaction .(individual1y, an· 11Excluded ·rransactio1111 .anc.l collectively, ·the 11 Excluded 
'l'ransactions11

) shall be tenninnted as .-soon thcrcafler as rensonnbly pn1ciicablc1 and upun 
tonnination shall he decn1cd t.o be .u Tcm1inulecl 'fransactio11 aud the Tcnninution JJ11y1nent 
pnynble in conne.Gtion -\vith _-all such 1·ra1ua1ctions shall _be calculated in -nccorduncc w-ith 
Section 5.3 below). 1'he Galllli .and l.osse:-1 ibr cuch 1'enninalcd Tran:·u1c1io11 ·shall be 
dctDrn1ined by culculating lhc an1ount thnt \Voulcl he incurred or realized to replace or io 
provide the uconon1it equivalent of th.c re1nainin_g pay1ncnt0 or deliverie.s in respect of 1hnt 
Tenninated Transaction. The NonRDefaulling PHrty (or its agent) 1nay dotcnninc il~ G-ain~ 
and Loi-aie:> by reference to info1111ation either ctvnilable-lo it intc111nlly or supplied by one or 
111ore Lhird purtiei:; includi11g:1 \Vithout li1nitution, quotutions (either firn1 or indicative) of 
rclcvnnt rates, prices, yields, yield curves, ·volatilities, spreads or other relevant n1urket data 
in the relevant 111nrkcls, Third pHrlies };i;tpplying such infonnution tnay include, without 



li1nitntion, dealers in lhe -relevant tnarkets, _endwuscri-; of :the relevant product, inforn1ation 
vendors and other sources of 1narket inforun1tion. 11

; The .No11-Defauhing Porty shall he 
required to rncet ult reasonable requests by the l)cfiu1lting .Party for supporting 
docu1nentation -in addition to reuuire1ncnts of Section 5.4 conccn1ing such vnhu1tions 
expressed herein. 

(vii) Section 5.3 shulJ _be an1cnded by adding the phrase 11plus, al the option of the NonMDcfuulting 
Party, nny cnsh or-other fonn-of.liquid-sccurity t11en in the possession of the Deff1ulting Party 
or its ugent pursuant -to Aliiclc l~ight. 11 after -the first use of the phrase 11duc to -the Non~ 
Delitulting Party" in the si:-:th line; 

(viii) Section 5kshall be amended by adding the following cluuse ut the end of Scction.5.4: 
11 Notwithstanding any _provi1>i.on lo the 

contrary-contained in thii-: Agreement, the 
Non,Defoulting Party shnll not he rcquiroillo 
pny lo theDcfaulting Party uny umount under 
A1ticlc 5 u11lil lhe-Non~.Defaulting Parly 
receives confirnu1tion satisfactory to it in its 
rct1sonable disGretion_(whichnu1y include an 
opinion .of its counsel) thnt all otber 
obligations of-auy =kind whuu;oever-of lhe 
Defaulting .Part:)• to 1nake any pHyments to the 
Non-Dcfaulting-Pa1iy under -this .Agreen1e11t or 
otherwise which arc due.and payuble as of the 

, Early Tenuinntion Date have been fully and 
fitmlly performed," 

(d) Section 6.8 , Transaction Netting. Section 6.8 is 
-ame~1dcd l~y rf(pl_nci.J1g· 11 n1ay by agreement of thc_]?arlies, 11 v.,iith-the ·\Vord·11will"-. 

(c) ArtickScvcJJ ·shall be amended as follows: 

Section 7.l, shall be amended by (i) deleting in the fifteenth line ·the words, "UNLESS 
.EXJ'RESSLY HEREfN PROVIDED'', (ii) ndding in the nineteenth line tl1e words 
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, NOTHING IN THlS SECTION SHALL AFFECT THE 
ENFORCEABILITY OF THE l'lWVJS!ONS OF THIS AGREEMENT RELATING TO 
REMEDIES FOR FAILURE TO DELJVER/RECEJYE IN SECTIONS 4.1 AND 4.~. AND 
CALCULATJON AND PAYMENT Of THE TERMINATION PAYMENT IN SECTIONS 
5.2 .AND 5.3." innuediatcly after the words "ANY JNDEMENITY PROVISION OR 
OTHERW!SE", und (iii) addi11g at the end of the ·last sentcncnhc words "AND ARE NOT 
l'ENALT!ES". 

(() ArtickEight shall be amended ns follows: 

Section 8. l(b) is.mnended by: 

(i) 111ne11ding the first sentence lo rcac\: " u·-p~u1y A has rcasonuhlc grounds for .insticurity 
regarding Party B >i:; perJornutnce of any obljgatio11 under lhis Agreenient, .Party A -v.rilJ 
provide Party B 'vith \.Vl'ittcn notice requesting Per:lbnnnncc A:-;sun111oc.: in an nn1ount 
detcnnincd hy Pmiy A in a conuncrcially rouHotutblc lnanncr." 

(ii) rcpladng the "three (3) Business l)ays" ill lhe fifth und sovenlh line:> \Yith "two (2) 
Busine.ss.Duys"; .and 

(jii) inserting the fo1lo\\'ing nl lhe t!nd lhcrcof: 



"ln-additiou, ii' l)nrty B fhils ·to prov.ide.-Perfonnnncc Assurunoc 'Ni thin t\vo _(2) Busiuess J)ays 
_of receipt of notice, Pnrty A tnay also \VithhoJd or suspend its puy1ncnt .obligations under this 
Agree111cnt and-under uny 1"ransaction until it receives the PerJOnnunce Assurance," 

Section '8.2(b_) is nn1endccl by: 

(i) amending the first •entence to 
.read: "If Party B ·1ias reasonable grounds for ins(~curity -regarding Purty A's perfonnance of all)' 

obligation under this Agree111ent, Purty B \.vill provide Purty A \vith ·written .notice requesting 
Peribn1u111cc Assurance in an a1nount detcnnined by l'flrty -B in B cornmercirilly reasonable 
1nanner. '' 

(ii) rcplucing the "throe (3) Bu•ine•N 

(iii) 

-Days" in the fifth and seventh lines with "two-(2) Business,Days"-; and 

inserling U1e. .fr.Jllov.1ing at the 
end thereof: 

"In addition1 if-Pn1iy A fails lo provide Perfonnnnc_e.Assurancc \Vithin two (2) Busincsn Duy~ 
of receipt of notice, Pnrty B tnay also v.iithhold or suspend.its payrnent obligations under this 
Agre.e1ncnt ·and under a11y .Transaction until -11.i·eccives the PerformlUlce Asx111·n11cc:11 

(g) Article Tcu Nhull be nmended !IS follows: 

(i) Section !0.2.(ix).is amended lo read in its entirety as follows: ''(ix) (1) it is a "forward 
eontrncl n1ercha11C' -\vi.thin the n1em1in_g of the :LJ iii led _States Bankruptcy-.Codc; :_{2J-it i~ -an 
·"eligible contract participunt"·a.s_suCh tcnn is delined ·in the-.Con11nodity·.Exchunge Act_,.-as 
.amended 7 U:S.C. * I {a) (12); Bnd (3) il is•aJl ''eligible.commercial entity" as such lem1 is 
dctlned in tne CommotlityExchangc Act, as mnended? U.S;C.·* 1 (o) (11)." 

(ii) Section 10.4 - Indemnity is amended 1o add the phras<' "unless a Claim is due to such 
Party's gross.11egligencc1 ·WillfuJ -misconduct-.or bad faith" at the.end:.of the frrst-~-entence 
of Section 10 .4. 

(iii) .Section l 0.6 i.~ deleted in.its entirety uud replaced v,iith :the fol1ov.•ing llC\\1 Section: 

"''10.6 Governing J_,ff\\-': Jurisdicti.on: Vilaivcr of _,Jurv 'f.rial. Thi:-; A.gree1ncnt shall be 
consln1et1 in accordance \\'ith, and ·this Agrec1ne11t--and nll 1nattors urising out of or relating in 
u11y \Vay \Vlmtso.ever -l(i this Agreement (\\'hefhcr in contract, tort or .othe1".visd) shall he 
governed qy, -lhc -\~\\' of ·the State _of NcVi1 -'\' ork. 

\\'ith re~pcct to n1_1y-suit,-action or.proceeding:-; rel'3ting to or uril>ing out or.this Agreen1enl or 
any ofthr truust1clions contctnplntcd hereby (l'raceediugs)_. each Party irrevocably: 

(i) :-lubn1it:-; to Lhe non-cxcluHive jurisdiction of the- Suprcrnc Courl of the Stale of·Ncv,' ).'ork 
!iitling in the .Borough or Manhnunn and .of the United Stalen Dislrict Court for the 
Southenl DiRtrict oJ'Nc\v Y ork1 and any appt::l latt cour! therefro1n; nncl 

(iv) \Vaive:-; ~rny objection \Vhich it 1nay have ut .any tin1e to the -lnying _of vcnuL~ .or uny 
Jlror.:ccdings brought -in any Huch court, _\vaive:-; any clui111 that suc11 Proceeding:-; have been 
broug'ht in an inconvenient forun1 and further w11ivcs the right lo object, with re!:ipccl to 
such Procccdingo, thnt such court doo:-; not have any jurisdiction ovc_r such ParLy. 



Each Purty hereby agrees that-a final, non-appcnlable j11dg1nent in any such J>rocecdings shall 
_be conclusive and 1nay be enforced in other jurisdiction8 otherwise having jurisdiction over ii 
by suit on suuh final judg1ncnt.or in any other inunner provided by Ja.w. 

Euch Party irrevocably waive51 lo the fullest ex.tent pcnnittcd by applicable hnv, Vt'ilh respecl 
to it~elf and its usset~ (irre~pectivc of.its ui>c or inlcnded use_)~ u11 inununity on _the grounds ol' 
sovcrc:ignt.Y (or any similar grounds availllble to a govcnunenlal entity or lnstru1ncntality) 
fro1n (i) suit, (ii)_jurisdiction of any court, (iii) relief by way tlf' injunction, order IOr Hpccific 
perfonnunce or Jbr recovery of its iH~setti, (iv) attacl1111ent of its .assets (\.vhether before (Jr after 
jud_gn1ent) and (v) execution or enforcen1cnt of nny judg1ncnt Hl \Vhicli it or i1~ revenue~ or 
us.i.:eLi.: -might othcrv;ise be entitled in .any Prouocdi11gs ill the court..i;; of uny juriRdiction nnd 
irrevocably ugrees, to the fulles\ extent pcrmitlcd by applicubk luw, Iha! it will not claim miy 
such inununity in 111}y 1}roceedings. 

ANY PROCEEDINGS ARISING OUT OF RELATING TO THIS AGREEMl\;NT 
SHALL BE R!i;SOLVED BY A JUDGE TRIAL WITHOUT A oTURY AND THE 
RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL JS WAIVED, TO nm FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED 
BY Al'l'LICABLE LAW. Each parly hernto hereby (a) certifies tlmi 110 representative, 
ngeiu _or -atlorney -of u11other _person has represented, expressly or othenvise, that such other 
person would not, in the event of. a PnJceedir~g. seek -to enforce the -foregoing \V.aiver and 
(b) acknowledges that it has been induced to oxecute and deliver, or Change its position in 
reliance upon thy-benefits of, this Agreement -by, arnong other things> the 1nulual ·\vaiven; ,and 
certificntiotL'i in-this Scction.11 

(v) Section I0,10 i• amended by deleting the section in its entirety and replacing it with the 
frillowi0g new Section: "Bankruptcy. The l'urties .acknowledge and agree that (i) any 
1·ransaction Y.~t11-a-1natnrity .date 1nore thau t\\'O day:.: after-the date the Trausaction is :entered 
:i11to .constitutcis .n ".forward contract" 'vithin the 1ncanit~g of the United Stutes -Ba1ikruptcy 
Code ,~the -•-'Bankruptc)' ·Gode"); .(ii) ce11aiu Tmnsactionfi inay -co11stitute "swap £lgreon1cnts" 
within '!be ·rneani11g .of the Bankruptcy Code; (iii) .all .payments made or to be made by one 
Party 'to the other P.arty pursuunt to .this A_green1ent -are usettle1nent -puy1nents11 .\vithin the 
n1canil)g of-the Bankruplc_y -Code; _and (iv) all ·transfers of J~erfor1na11cc Assurnnce. by one 
'Party Jo the other Party under-this Agreen1e11t -:are '11nargin-paytnents11 -within 'the -ineaning-of 
\he Baukrµptcy Code. 1'acb l'nrty further agrees that, for purposes of this Agreement, !he 
other Party is not a 11utilitY" -as such tonn is used .in 1-1 -U.S.C. Scctio1l 3661 and each Party 
agrees to waive.and· not to-·ussert tbe l!Rplicnbility-ofthe-provision.s.of 11 U.S.C. Section 366 
.in any bn1tl-Juptcy ·proceeding ·Whcrcju .such ·rarty -is .a debtor. ln any ::-1uch-proccedi11g, ca-1ch 
Party further agrees .tc.' wuiv.e tire.right to ussert that-the other .Purty iH.H provider .of .last resorL" 

(vi) Sectimi I OJ l shall be atnC1lded by adding the word "Affilintcs" phrase "or tlie wmpletcd 
Cover S.heet to.this.-Musler Agree1nent11 imtncdiateJy.b_eforc the phrdsc 11 to a third part~v11 ; it1 
1heJourth line thereof, between the words "e111ployecs" and illendurs" in line 4. ln the seve.ntb 
1ine _t11ereof} b.etween. the \V.ord ~:'.proceeding" and the 1'ic111i~colo11, \Vhich innnediately ·foll0Yi1~. 
add the.words ·~applicoble to such Party or.any ofjL:-; Afiiliute:-;". An additional :-;cntence-0t the 
end uf Section 10.11: "A Purty n1ay disclose any one or 1nore of:thc oon11nercial te.nns .of- ri 

1'rmumction (other than the na1nc of the other Piniy uulcss other\visc-<1grecd to.in \'r'riting hy 
lhe Parties) to any _industry price source for -1he purpose of nggrcgating and reporting such 
infor111ation in the forn1 of 11 published energy price index." 

(.vii) 'J'he follo\v.ing Scctioll shall be added as a ne\V Se.ctio11 10.13: 

10.13 Index Transnction~. If the J>urties enter into .a Trunsuction h1 which any or all or th<: 
pricing.component ifi bused on.an pricing index.1 the follo\ving shull apply: 

{u) lv1arket Disruption. lLu Market Disrupl-ion Ev.ant ha:-; occun·cd antl if; continuing Jbl' ont.: 
or more Trading l)ays during the ·nete.rmlnntion Period, the floating Prier;~ for such 
Trading J)ay f;hHll be dctennined pursui!nl Lo the index specified i11 the \runs.action for 



the first Tn1ding Dny thcreufter on \Vhich no Market J)isruption Even\ exists; provided, 
ho\vever, if the Floating Price is nol so cletennined \Vithin tlll'ec (3) l3usiness Days after 
the first Trading _Day on which the Mal'ket Dh;ruplion ·Event occurred or existed, then 
the parties :lhull negotiate in .good faith to agree on n floating Price (or a 111ethod for 
detem1ining 11 Floating Pricc)1 and if the purlicl'i have not :.;o agreed 011 or before the 
1welfth (12'') Business Day lOJJowing the first Trading Day on which the Markot 
.Disruption Event occurred or existed, then the Floating ·r.rice shall be detennined in 
:good faith by taking the aven1.ge of l\Vo dealer quotes obta-ined fro111 .dealers of !he 
highest credit standing whicl1 satisfy all the criteria that the Seller applies generally at 
.the tin1e in deciding to offer or to inukc an cx:tension of,crcdil. 

(b) Con·eclions to-.Published Prices. For purposes of detennining the relevant prices for .any 
dny1 if the price published or announced on n _given .duy and used or to be used -to 
detennh1e a relevant _price "is subsequenUy corrected -and the correction is publisl1ed :or 
a1u1ounct:d lJy the person-respousible for ·that .publication or Hnnouncen1ent. either Jlarty 
may notify the other Party of (i) !hat concction and (ii) the amount (ff any) that is 
payable as u result of that correction. Jf a Vutty gives -notice that .ru1 a1noun1 is 'SO 
_pnynblc, !ht P-urt.y that originally eit11er received or rctainc<l such a1nount 'A'i"ll, ·not ·h1ter 
than three (3) Business ,Days after th~ effectiveness of !hut notice, pay, suQject to uny 
applicob1c conditions_precedent, to the oiher Party.that amoun~ toge!her .\vith intcrcsl nl 
the Interest Rate fOr .the period fron1 and including thc .dH)' on "'hic:11 puynient originally 
was (or was .not) made to but excluding !he doy of poymenl of the refund .or vayment 
resulting -fi:om :that con·cction. 

(c).,Ca-lcu1atio11 of.Floating .Price. For the purposes of the calcuintion of·u Fl on ting.I' rice, all 
numbersshull .be rounded to three (3) decimal.places. If the fourth.(4'") .dedmal numher 
is five (5) or greater, then the tl1ird (3'0) dccimul number shall be increased b~ .one •(l), 
nnd .if the fourth (4'") .decimal number is loss than five .(5), then the third (3") decimal 
nutuber shall ren1ah1 unchanged, 

(d)Definitions fodndex Transactions. The following .definitions shalLupply: 

"Detennination Period" n1eans each -calendar 111onth duril)g the tern1 of the relevant 
Transaction; ,provided that _if the ·tern1 of.n T-ransaction is less than one calendar 1nontb 
the.Determination l)efiod:-shall be the te1n1 _of a Transaction. 

11.Floatine -Price11 means the price specified in a 'I'ransaction as -being based llpon a 
specified index. 

"Market i)isn1ption Event" means, with Te.~pect to an .index, any _of thr. JoJlt)\ving events: 
(a)' the failure-of.the ·index to announce or publish inforunnion nr::oe!isary for dctern1ining 
the .Flouting ]}rioe; (b) the failure of trading to co1n1nencc- or .the pornuu1cnt 
disconli11Uation. or material suspension of lradin_g ·in the relevant options .contract or 
com1nodity on the exc1uu1ge or 1nurket ttcting as the index; (c) the Lomporury or 
permanent dlscontinuance.or .unnvnilability-ofthe index_; {d)-.the- te1uporary or:peniuu1cnl 
closing of uny-exchat~gc ucting us the index; or -(e) 11 nutteriul uhunge in the fOnnulu .fOr 
or the =tnet11od of dctem1ining the Flonting·Price, 

"Tradinr. J)ay0 n1cnnfi a day in respect of \Vhich the relevant price source publiid1ed or 
was-to pub1 ish the relevant .price.; ,and 

(viii) Add new Section J0.14. 
Any document generated by the Partie~ \~1ith respec! to lhi~ A_grec1ncnt, including lhi~ 
Agree1nent, JllH.Y he in1qged and stored electronically (1 1 ln1nged Docu1nents" ), hnugcd 
Docu1nenl~ may bt: 'introduced us evidence in any prococding ns iC ·such -were original 
business records and neither Pnrly shall con1e1H the nd1nissibi\ity of 11nagccl l)ocu1ncnts n.s 
evidence in any pro_ceeding. 

{ix) A.cld n new Section 10.15 



' 1f~RC Standard ofRevic\~': Mobile-Sierra \Vaivei:. 

(a) Absent lhe a_gr"eetnent of all Parties to the proposed change, the standnrd of 
revie\v for changeH to any rate, charge, classi!icution, lern1 or condition of thi:-; 
/\gn::e1ncnt, whether proposed by a Party (to the extent !hat uny \Vaiver in subsection (b) 
below h: uncnforcct1blc or ineffective as lo Hucl1 Pnrty), a non~party or f.ERC' acting sua 
sponU!i shall -be the '1public interest" standard ofrevicv.1 sel forth in lJnitecl Clas Pipe Linc 
Co. v. J\1obile GuH Service Corp., 350 U.S. 332 (1956) and Fefleral Pov.1er c:am1nissio11 v. 
Sierra Pncilic l'owcr Co., 350 U.S. 348 (J 956)( the "Mobik-Sicm1" doctrine). 

{b) In addition, and not\.vith~:tandit)g the 10regoing sobsection _(a), -lo the fullest 
cxtenl pennitled by-upplicnhle Ja\\11 each ])arty, for-itself and .-its successors and .ussi_gns, 
hereby expressly and irrcvocabJy waives -~u1y rights it ca11 or 1nny huve, .no\\' or in the 
foture, whether under §§ 205 and/or 206 of the Federal Power Act or otherwise, to seek 
to obtain from FERC Q)' any means, directly or indirectly (through complaint, 
investigation or othcnvise),.and each.hereby covenants and_~!grees not at-any tin1c to seek 
to so obtuin 1 an order frorn FEitC changing any section of thi~ Agrceincnt specifying the 
rate, charge, classificntion1 or ot1ler tem1 or condition agreed to qy the "Parties, it being the 
cxpr.ess intent of the Parties ._that, to the fuJlest extenl_pen.uitted by applicub_lc:: lav.1, the 
hsanctity of contract" principlcs-acknow1ed_ged by FERC in iL."i Notice of Proposed Policy 
Statement (Issued August l, 2002) in Docket No. PL02-7-000, Standard .of Review for 
l'ropo•ed Changes to lvlarket-Based Rate Contract.' for Wholesale Sales of Electric 
Energy by Public Utilities, ("NPPS") shall prevail and neither Party slmll unilaterally 
seek to obtain :fron1 FERC any relief ahnnging the rate, .charge, ciass.ificaLiotI.i or other 
tenn or condition of this .agree1nont, notwithstnnding ,w1y subsequent _changes j11 
applicable la\v .or n1arket-conc1itions :that 1n1:1y occur. In-Jhe event it \.Vere to .b_e determined 
that .applicable lnv.1 precludes the -Parties from \Vniving their -rights to .seek changes fron1 
FER.C to ·their markct~based p0\\1er snkis contracts _(including-entering into covenuntR not 
lo do so) then tl1is ,subsection (b) shall tmt .apply, provided that, consistent with the 
foregoing .subsection (~\) } neither Pnrry .Shall seek any such -Changes .exc~pt .under the 
"public interestn standard of review nncLothen .. vise as set forth·in _thc.foregoiug.seotion (Cl). 

( c) .ln connectio11--\vilh the foregoing, -the Partie:-; -ackno\vJedgc-that, pursuanl to the NPPS_) 
FER.C has invited .inlerei·a.ed persons to subn1it con11nents ·with respec! ·to the provision8 
thereof and therefore ugrcc that, ifand'to-the extent_FER.C ado_pto.in.u final or subsequent 
poliqy slaten1ent {'.'FPS") which requires, in order to exclude _application of the just ·and 
reasonable _standard 11nder .the .Mobile~Sierrn doctrine~ ·the. usl'. of specific language ·\vhich 
v.arie}i ·fron1 that set .out ]11 the foregoing Bubsection (a), then the fore_goiqg _subsection({\) 
shall, \Vithout further actio11 of either-Par~y, be .deen1ccl atnended to incorp.orat.e suoh 
-specific language that re~1uires lhc public ·huercsl standard of rcvie'll', .provided thal -to :the 
extent thal the specific langungc-udopted in nn FPS .i:. 'iu any way inconsistent with the 
nn.nual intent of the Parties in this regard .as currently Het -forth in U1c foregoing 
subsections. (a)-and (b)i-then the Parties cigrcc to meet -to .attcn1pt to.-ne_goti_nte in goud fuith 
an -a1ncnd1nent to this ·section 10 to. address such inconsisle::ncies, provided further that 
J1clthcr Party ·::;hull be ubligalcd -in uny '.'-vuy to agree lo nny suoh an1cnd111cnt jf to do so 
\vould be inconsistent \Vith such curren! -1nulual intent us cxpresHcd herein .or would 
ex_pose nuob Party in any wny to greater risk of changes being ordered by FERC to this 
Agrce1nent.'' 

(x) Add u new Section 10.16. 
"Puny A and Varty l~ agree thnt they v.1ill 11ot, \Vithout the prior \Vrittcn consent of Party 
B'~ Guan111tor, PPG 1ndustrics, Int:, (11PPG 11

), enter int0 nny Transaction or any 
.supplcn1cnt, .rcsll.Jte1nent, extension, novatiou, llHHerial an1cndn1cn1 or other nuncrial 
inodi1icotio11 lo-thiH Agt'cc1nent in:.:luding any 111odificalion nu1de io a previously entered 
into Transaction. -Such prior "\Vriltcn consent Hhull be sent by PPG by e1nuil and fi1csi111ile 



to both Party A-and Party B ond such \Vritlen cnn~ent shull specify the deul tern1fi and 
pnnunctcrs-or inodifications to -be n1acle to this Agree1ne111, 11s app1icablc, _("Deal ·renui-;") 
thai Party B ii; authorized lo traniutcl or execute under this l\grecn1C:'lnt. Such \VriUt:!n 

consent shall al.so iucludc, if applicable_, uny li111itatio11 on !he tin1ing by v,1)1ich ~n 

agree1nc111.bet\veeu P.urty A and Purty B 1nust -occur as it rclatc:.s lo the l$pecified .Dcal 
1\:nns. The delivery of a \Vriuen const:nl by PPG to Patty Ji-. nnd Pnrty B shull llot 
obJignlc Pnrly A to enter into ~uch specified Dc11\ Tenn:- ·\\'ith Pany B, provided, 
ho\vcvcr, that any 1'ransactio_n or 1nodHicntio11 to this Agrec1ncnt entered into-by Party A 
nnd Pm1y 13 shull .conforn1 to such Dca1 Tcnus specified in such \~'fit.ten conscnl. For 
purposes of the foregoing, prior \vrillen conHent .lo Party A shull be sent by einnil to: nnd 
by facsin1ilc to:, and ·prior -v.'fitlen consenl ·to Par~y B shall be sent. 

l'ttrt 2. SClrnJJULE I' 

The following dcfiniti011' are hcrehy added to Schedule P: 

'
1CAISO Energy" 111cans \Vith respect to n 1'ransactio111 -u J>roduct under \Vhich the Seller shnll .8ell untl. the 

.Bu_yer shall _purchase .a quantity of energy equal to the -.hourly quantity -\vithoul Ancillary :Services (af-i 
defined in the ·Tarift) thm is or will be scheduled as a schedule coordinator to sche.dulc coordinator 
·transaction pursuant lo the-applicable tariff and proloco] ·provisions of the -Culifon1ia independent Systcn1 
0perator {11 CAIS011

) {ns mncnded -ffo111 thuc -to time_, the "Toriil1') for which the .only excuse -for ii1Hure to 
deliver or receive is.an 11Uncontrollable.Forcen (-as.defined it1lhe1·aritl). 

"West Finn" or "WSPPC-Firm" means with respect-to u Transaction, Product.defined by the WSJ'P 
Agree1nent as -an1euded, Jn Servicc·Schedulc C as ~itn1 Cnpnoity!Energ.y-Sale-or -ExChnn_ge :Service:" 

"V\'ECC1' 1ncans :the -Western Electricity Coordinating Co11ncil. 

11 'fl'SJ>Jl Agrce1ncnt11 n1carn·;Jhc W.estcn1 ·systems Power Pool Agreernent-ns. an1ended fron1 -.tiine:t()·titne. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the l'ar!ies have cm•,ed this Mu•ter Agreement to be duly executed as of the 
dutc .first above \Vritten, 

Title: 

W. Eric .Oennisrm 
Sllnior V!::e l"resh:lent 

Party B· APN:STARFIRST,.L.P. 

DISC-LAlM:EJl: 1'bis IVlastcl' Jloll'C1· Pu1·chasl' and Sal~ Agrcetnent ''"'U!i prcp!lrud -by a con11nittce- uf 
repr~sontntiven of _Edison Ele.ctric lnstitutc ( 11 l~EI") -anti Natiounl Energy -MHrlictcrs Associntiou 
{"NEM 11 ) -1ne1nhcr :co1npnnics to fncililnte orderly trnding in nnd rlevelopnu.•.nt of \\'-hole.sale po'''cr 
111arkcts. Neither EEJ nor Nl~IVI nor Hny 1nen1bcr --COIUJHlll)' nor nn~' of.their agents, rcp1·escntntive}; 
or nttorneys .uhnll be res]Jonsiblr for its use, or uuy dumqgcs resulting ihcrcfro1n. By ·providing this 
Agrec1ncnl El~I uncl NEM du nol offer lcgnl ndvicc .11ucl ull users al'(' urged to consult their o'VJ! legal 
counsel to ensure thul their conunercial objectives lvill be achieved ancl their legal interests Jll'c 

ndcquntely protected. 
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PARAGRAPH 10 
to the 

COLLATERAL ANNEX 
to the 

EEi MASTER POWEH PURCHASI;; AND SALE AGREEMENT 

CREDIT ELECTIONS COVER SHEET 

Paragraph 10. Elections and Variables 

1. Collateral Threshold 

A. Part'' A Collateral Threshold. 

2 

[gj $ l 0,000,000 (the "Threshold Amount"); provided. however, that the 
Collateral Threshold for Party A shall be zero upon the occurrence and 
during.the continuance of an Event of Default or a Potential Event of 
Default witb respect to Party A;. and provided further that, in the event 
that, and on the elate that, Party A cures the Potential Event of Default on 
or priorto the dateihat Party A is required to post Perfonnance Assurance 
to Paity B pursuant to a demand made by PartyB .pursuant to the 
provisions of the,Collateral Annex on oLaftcr the occurrence ofsuoh 
Potential Event of Default, (i)the Collateral Threshold for Party A shall 
automatically increase from zero to the Threshold Amount uncl (ii)Party A 
shall be relieved of its obligation to post Performance Assurance pursuant 
to such demand. 

IJ {a) The amount (the "Threshold Amount") set forth below under the 
heading "Party A Collateral Threshold" opposite the Credit Rating.for 
[Party A][Party A's Guarantor] on the relevant date of detennination, or 
(b) zero ifon the relevant date of detennination [Party A][its Guarantor] 
does not have a Credit Rating from the rating agency specified below or 
an Event ofDefault or a Potential Event of Default with respect to J'arty 
A has .occurred and is continuing; provided. however, in the event that, 
und on the date that, .Party A cures the.Potential Event of Default on or 
prior to the date that Party A is required to post .Performance Assurunce to 
Party B pursuant to a demand made by Party B pursuant to the provisions 
of the Collateral Am1ex on or after the occurrence ofsuc11.Potentia.1 Event 
ofDefoult, (i) the Collaleral Threshold for Pmiy A shall autornaticully 
increase from zero to the Threshold for Pmiy A shall uutomalically 
increase from zero to the Threshold Amount and (ii) Party A shall be 
Tclieved of its obligation to post Performance Assurance pursuant to such 
demand. 

EDFl'NA v.201l1004 
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Party A 
Collateral Threshold Credit Rating 

$ ____ _ ___ (or above) 
$ 
$_, ___ _ 
$ ___ _ 

$ Below ---- -----

CJ (a) The amount (the "Threshold Amount") set forth below under the 
heading "Pmty A Collateral Threshold" opposite the Credit Rating for 
[Party A][Party A's Guarantor] on the relevant date of determination, and 
if[Party A's][Pa11y A's Guarantor's] Credit Ratings shall not be 
equivalent, the lower Credit Rating shall govern or (b) zero if on the 
relevant date of determination [Party A][its Guarantor] does not have a 
Credit Rating from the rating agency(ics) specified ·below or .an Event of 
Default or a Potential Event of' Default with.respect to Party A has 
ooc!llnd and is continuing; provided. however, in the event that, and on 
the date that, l' arty A .cures the Potential Even\ of Dcfaull on or p1ior to 
the date that Party A is required to post Perfonnancc Assurance to Pmty B 
pursuant to a demand made by Party B pursuant to the.provisions.of the 
Collateral Annex on or after the occummee of such Potential Event of 
Default, (i)'the Collateral Threshold for Party .A shall automatically 
increase from zero to the Threshold .Amount .and (ii.) Party A shall be 
relieved of its obligation to post Performance Assurance pursuant to such 
demand. 

Party A 
Collateral Credit .R:1ting: S&l' Credit Rating: 
Threshold Moodv'.s 

$5,000,000 A- (or above) A3 (or above) 

$3,000,000 BBB+ Baal 

$1,000,000 BBB Baa2 

$0 BBB- (or below) Baa3 (or below) 

[I The arnounl of the Guaranty Agreement elate--· from ___ . as 

l\D1-TNA v.20111004 

amended from time lo time but in no event shall Party A's Collalcral 
Threshold be greater thun $ ... -·--

3 
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C! Other - sec attached threshold tcnns 

B. Partv B Collateral Threshold. 

l8l $7,000,000 (the "Threshold Amount"); provided. however, that the 
Collateral Threshold for Pmty B shall be zero upon the occurrence and 

during the continuance of an Event of Default or u Potential Event of 
Default with respect to Party B; und nrovided further that, in the event 
that, and on the date that, Party B cures the Potential Event ofDcfoult on 
or prior to the date that Party B .is required to post Perfonnance Assurance 
to Party A pursuant to a demand made by Party A pursuant to the 
provisions of the Collateral Annex on or a1ier the occurrence of 
such Potential Event of Default, (i) the Collateral Threshold for Party B 
shall automatically increase from zero to the ThTeshold Amount and 
(ii) Party B shall be relieved ofits obligation to post Performance 
Assurance pursum1t to such demand. 

o (a) The amount (the "Threshold Amount") set forth below underthc 
heading "Party B Collateral Thre8hcild" opposite the Credit Rating for 
[Party B][Party B's GuarantoiJ on the relevant date of dete1mination, .or 
(b) zcroifon the relevant date of determination [Party B][its Guarantor] 
does not have u Credit Rating from the rating agency specified below or 
an Event of Default or a Potential Event ofDefault with respect to Party B 
has occurred and is .continuing; provided, however, in the ev.ent that, and 
on the date that, Party B curosthe Potential Event of Default 011 or prior to 
the date that Party B is required to post Performance Assurance to Party A 
pursuant to a demand made by Party Apursuant to the provisions of the 
Collateral Annex on or after the occurrence of.such Potential Event of 
Default, (i) the Collateral Threshol<l for Party B shall automatically 
increase from zero to the Threshold Amount and (ii) PartyB shall he 
relieved of its obligation to post Perfonnance AsslJrance,pursuant to such 
demand. 

EDFTNA v.201!1004 

4 
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Party B 
Collateral Threshold Credit Rating 

$ ---· (or above) ---
$ ----
$ ----
.$ ___ _ 

$ __ _ Below 

o (a) The amount (the "Threshold Amount") sot fo1th below imder the 
heading "!'.arty B Collateral Threshold" opposite the Credi!Rating for 
[Party BJ[Pm1y B's Guarantor] on the relevant date of determination, and 
if[PartyB's][Party B's Guarantor's] Credit Ratings shall not be 
equivalent, the lower·Credit Rating shall govern, or (b) zero ifo11 the 
relevant date of determination [Pm1y B ][its Guarantor] does noLhave a 
Credit Rating from the relevant ratipg i+gency(ies) specified below or an 
Event ofDefault ora Potential Event of Default with respectto Party B 
has occurred .mid is continuing; provided. however, in the event that, and 
on the date that, Party B cures the Potential Event ofDefoult on orpriorto 
the date thuLParty·B is reguired to postPerfomiance Assurance to Party A 
pursuant to a demand.nmde by Party A pursuantto the provisions of the 
Collateral Annex on or afterthe occurrence ofsuch Potential Event of 
Default, (i) the Collateral Threshold for Patty B Shall automatically 
increase from zero to the Threshold Amount and (ii) Party B shall be 
reliev.ed ofits obligation to postl'er.forrnancepursuant to such demand. 

P11rty B 
Collateral 

Threshold 
Credit Rating Credit Rating 

---- (or above) ___ (or above) 
$ ----
$ ----
'~ ----
$ Below Below ---- --- ----

no1:-rNA v.20111004 

5 
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D The amount of the Guaranty Agreement datcd __ Ji·om , as 
amended from time to time but in no event shall Party B's Collutcrul 
Threshold be greater than$ ___ . 

o Other- Party B's Tbrnshold Amount shall be-.--.. 

ll. Eligible Collateral and Valuation ·Percentage. 

The following items will qualify as "Eligible Collateral" for the Party specified: 

Partv Partv 
A n Valuation Percentage 

(A) Cash [X] IX] I OO'Y., 

(B) Letters of Ix l [X] 1 00% of the undrawn amount unless 
Credit either (i) a Letter of Credit Default 

shall have occutTed and be continuing 
with respect to such Letter of .Credit, 
or (ii) thirty (30) or fewer Business 
Days remain prior to the expiration .of 
such Letter of Credit, in which cases 
the Valuation .Percentage shall be .zero 
(0). 

(C) Other [ J I l % 

III. Independent Amount. 

A. l'artv A Independent Amount. 

u Party A shall have a Fixed Independent Amount of$ . If 
the Fixed lnc\ependcnt Amount option is selected for Pmty A, then Purty A 
(which shall be a Pledging Pmty with respect to the Fixed IA 

EDVrNA v.201 I ltHM 

Performance Assmance) will be.required to Transfer or cuuseto be 
Transfoned to Party B (which shall be u Secured Party with respect to the 
Fixed JA P.erfonnuncc Assurance) Performance Assurance with a 
Collateral Value equal to the amount of such lndcpenclcnl Amount (the 
"Fixed IA Perfmmance Assurance"). The Fixed lA Perfonnancc 
Assurance shall not be reduced for so long as there arc any outstanding 
obligations between the Parties as a result ofthc Agreement, and shall not 

6 
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he taken into account when calculating Pm1y A's Collaleral reguirement 
pmsuant lo the Collaleral Annex. Except as expressly set forth above, lhc 
Fixed lA Perfonnance Assurance shall he held and maintained in 
accordance with, and otherwise be subject to, Paragraphs 2, 5(b), 5(c), 6, 7 
and 9 .of the Collateral Am1ex. 

O Party A shall have a Full Floating Independent Amount of 
$ . Ifthc Full Floating Independent Amount option is 
selected for Pm1y A, then for purposes of calculating Party A's Collateral 
.Requirement pursuant to Parat,>t·aph 3 of the Collateral Atmex, such Full 
Floating Independent Amount for J'arty A shall be added by Party B to its 
Exposure Amount for purposes of determining Net Exposure purnuant to 
Paragraph 3(a) of the Collateral Annex. 

iJ Party A shall have a Partial Floating Independent Amount of 
$ . 'If the Partial Floating Independent Amount option is 
selected for Party A, then Party A will be .required to Trnnsfer or cause to 
be Transfened to Party B Pe1formance Assurance with .a Collateral V<1lue 
equal to the amount ofsuch Jndqpendent Amount (the "Partial Floating 1A 
l'erfotTIJance Assurance") if at any time Party A otherwise 'has a Collateral 
Requirement (noUa'king into consideration the Pmtial Floatiqg 
·Independent Amount) pursuantto Paragraph 3 of the Collateral Amiex. 
The Partial Floating IA Perfonnance Assurance shall not be reduced so 
lorni as Party A has a Collateral Requirement (not taking into 
consideration the Partial .Floatiqg Independent Amount.). The Partial 
Floaliqg lnde,pendent Amount shall not be taken into account when 
calculating a Party's Collateral Requirements pursuant toihe Collateral 
Annex. Except as expressly set forth above,thePartial Floating 
Independent Amount shall be held and maintained in accordance with, and 
otherwise be.subjectto, the Collateral Annex. 

B. Partv B Independent Amount. 

[I Party B shall have a Fixed lndependent Amount of$ . If 

EDFl'NA v.201 I HJ04 

the Fixed Independent Amount option is selected f<.lJ Party B, then Pa11y B 
(which shu11 be a Pledging Party with respect to the Fixed IA Petformance 
Assurance) will be required to Transfer or cause to be Transferred to T'arty 
A (which shall be .a Secured Part): wit11 respect to the Fixed IA 
Perfonnance Assurance) Performance Assunuiee with a Collateral Value 
cquul to foe amount of such Independent Amount (the "Fixed IA 
Perfonnance Assurance"). The Fixed IA Performance Assurance shall not 
be reduced for so Jong as there are any outstanding Obligations between 
the Parties as a result of the Agrccmcnt,~and shall not be taken into 
account when calculating Party B's Collateral Requirmmmt pursuant to the 
.Collateral Annex. Except as expressly set forth above, the Fixed 1A 
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Pcrfonnance Assurance shall be held and maintained in accordance with, 
and otherwise be subject to, Paragraphs 2, S(b ), 5( c), 6, 7 and 9 the 
Collateral Annex. 

I] l'miy B shall have 11 Full Floating Independent Amount of 
$ _. lfthe Full Floating Independent Amount option is 
selected for Party B then for purposes of calculuting Patiy B's Collateral 
Requirement pursuant to Paragraph 3 of the Collateral Annex, such Full 
Floating Independent Amount for Party B shall be added by Party A to its 
Exposure Amount for purposes of determining Net Exposure pursuant to 
Parai,rruph 3(a) of the Collateral Aru1ex. 

o Party B shall have i1 Partial Floating lndependcntAmount of 
$ . Jfthe Partial Floating lndependent Amount option .is 
selected for PaiiyB then Party B will be required to Trausfor or cause to 
be Tran~ferred to Party A .Perfmmancc Assurance with a Collateral Value 
equal to the amount ofsuc11 lndepc11de11tAmou11t (the ''Partial Floating IA 
Performance Assurance") if at any time Party B otherwise has a Collateral 
Requirement (not taking into consideration the Partial Floatir1g 
Independent Amouni) pursuantto paragraph 3 of the Collateral Annex. 
The Pmiial Floating IA Perfonnance.Assurance shall not be reduced for so 
long as Pm1y B has a CollateralRequirement {not taking into 
consideration the Partial Floatinglndependent Amount). The Partial 
Floating Independent Amount ~hall not he taken into account when 
calculating n Party's Collateral Requirements pursuant to the Collateral 
Annex. Except as expressly set forth above, the.Partial Floating 
Independent Amount shall be held and maintained.in accordance with, and 
otherwise hecsubjectto, the Collateral.Annex. 

IV. Minimum Transfer Amount. 

A. ]'arty A Minimum Transfer Amount: $1.00 

B. Party B Minimum Transfer Amount: $1.00 

V. Rounding Amount. 

A. Part\• A Rounding Amount: $I 00,000 

B. Part\• H Rounding Amount: $ l 00,000 

f:DFTNA v.1tll I 10t14 
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VI. Aclministratiou of Cash Collateral. 

A. l'llrty A Eligibility to Hold Cash. 

IJ Pmty A shall not be entitled to hold Perfonnance Assurance in the fonn of 
Cash. l'erfom1ance Assurance in the form of Cash shall be held in a 
Qualified Institution in uccord!mce with the provisions of Pnragrap]1 
6(a)(ii)(B) of the Collateral Annex. Patty Ashall pay to Party Bin 
nccordance with the terms of.the Collateral Annex the amount of interest it 
receives from the Qualified Institution on any Perfonnance Assurance in 
the form of Cash posted by Party B. 

181 Pmty A shall be entitled to hold Performance Assurance in the form .of 
Cash provided that the following conditions are satisfied: (]) it is not a 
Defaulting Party and (2) Cash shall be held only in any jurisdiction within 
the United States. To the extent Party A is entitled to hold Cash, the 
Interest Rate payable to Pmty B on Cash shall be as selected below: 

Pm:ty A interest Rate. 

181 .Federal Funds Effective Rate - the rate for that day 
opposite the c~ption "Federal Funds (Effective)" as .set 
forth in the weekly statistical release desii,'llated as 
H.15(519), or any successor publication, published by 
the Board of Governors ofthe Federal Rcserv.e System. 

o Other ------

B. P11rtv B Eligibility to Hold Cash. 

O Party B shall not be entitled to hold ]'erfonnance .Assurance in the form of 
Cash. Perfonmmce Assurance in the form of Cash sha11 he held in a 
Qualified Institution in accordance with the provisions of Parai,rrnph 
6(a)(ii)(B) of the Collateral Annex. Party B shall p11y to Pa!ty A in 
uccordunce with the terms of the Collateral Annex the .amount of interest it 
receives from the Qualified Institution on any Performance A8suranur: in 
the fonn of Cash posted by Party A. 

u Party B slmJJ be entitled to hold Perfomrnncc Assurance in the form of 
Cush provided that the following conditions are satisfied: (I) it is not a 
Defaulting Pmiy and (2) Cash shall be held only in any jtu-isdiction within 
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the United States. To the extent Patty B is entitled lo hold Cash, the 
Interest Rule payable to Party A on Cash shall be as selected below: 

VU. Notification Time. 

Partv B Interest Rate. 

181 Federal Funds Effective Rate - the rate for that clay 
opposite the caption "Federal Funds (Effective)" as set 
forth in the weekly stutistical. release designated as 
H.15(519), or any successor publication, published by 
the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 
System. 

lJ Other -____ _ 

181 Other - 3 p.m., New York time. 

VIII. General. 

·With respect to the Collateral Thresh.old, Independent Amount, Minimum 
Transfer Amount and Rounding Amount, if no selection is maclc in this 
Co.verShcctwith rcspectto 11 Party, then the applicable amount in each case 
for such Party shall be zero (0). In ,addition, with respect to the 
"Administration of Cash Collateral" section .of Paragraph 10, if no selection 
is made with respect to a Party, tb.cn such Party shall not be entitled to .hold 
Performance Assurance in the form of Cash and such Cash, if .any, 'Siulll be 
held .in a Qualified Institution pursuant to J'aragr,aph 6(a)(ii)(B) of the 
Collateral Annex. 1f 11 Party .is .eligible to hold Cash pursmmt to a selection 
in th.is Paragraph 1- hut no Interest Rate is .selected, then the Interest Rate 
for such Part)• shall 'be the 'Federal Funds Effective Rate .as defined in Section 
VI of this l'aragraph 10. 

JX A1lllUH1rncnt11 

(i) Dclcl<:- -the word "exclusive" .i1n111edintely before (he phrase ··-condilions under \Vhich n Party \Viii 
be required to Transfer Perfonnance As~n1n1nc.e" <1ncl i1nn1cdiatcly bciOrc -the phrase "condition .... under 
which :-i Purty -will relca:o;e such Pcrfonnancc: 1\ssura1u.:c" in the first Hentence of the second introductory 
paragn1ph. 
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(ii.) Paragraph 1. Delinilions. 

(u) Al the encl of the definition of "Credit Rn!ing" following the word "S&P" add, "or 'issuer 
ruting' by Moody'x." 

(b) Within the definition of"Crcdit Rating Event", chunge "6(a)(iii)" to Paragraph "6(a)(ii)". 

(c) Within the definition of"Down;,'fucled l'uI1)"', change "(i)" to "(ii)". 

(d) 'A'ithin the definition· of "Letter of.Credit Default1' is ~nnendcd-by replacin,g -u1e \vord "or" in 
the third line with the word "and." 

(e) V..1ithin ·the definition-of "Pcrfomutnce Assurance'', -change ·"6(-a)(i\i)'' -to 0 6(u)(iii)''. 

(fJ Within the definition of "Qualified Institution", delete "and" iinmediately before "surplus". 

(g) Within the definition of "Secured Part)'', change ''.(h)" to "(u)". 

(iii) For purposes of the Collaternl Annex, "setolf', "set off' and "offset" shall have the same menning. 

{iv) Parugr11ph -5. R.eductio11 unClSUbstitution of Perfonnancc .A..ssnran<:e 

(u) In paragraph S(a) _in line 20 ·the words "boforc the Notification Tiine on t1 f:h1siness ·n~y" shall 
be r~lacc::d by the Vi'ords "before the-Notification Ti1ne,_on a-Locril Business Duy", 

(b) Ir paragraph 5(b) rcpluce .the words "two (2) .Local Business Days" in the second &entence 
witl1 the words "one (l)'Locul Business Pays''. 

(\') ·Pan1grn1>h ·6. f\dministration-.o-f.Perfonnunce Assurance. 

(a) In '!he first •entencc of paragraph 6(a)(ii)(H) delete tl1e words "approved by the non­
Downgmdecl Party (which approval shall 11ot be unreasonably withheld), to a segregated, 
safrikeepiqg or--custody ·account (the ·0 collateral Account'') \Vithin such -Qualified Institution \Vith 
1he·title. .of the .account indicating_ (het-.thc-property contained therein is being ·held .as Cash for.the 
DowngrndedJ'any" and add "("CollatcralAccourl") ofterthe words "Collateral Account" in·.thc 
second sentence. 

(b) In poragrnph .6(a)(ii)(B), in the 1 J '" and 1211
' Jines, the words "to pe1fect .the •ecurity interest .of 

the _Non-Do\vngn1ded Purty" are deleted tu1d -rephlcCcl -\vith .the words -"-io perfect the ·security 
interest of'the Downgraded Party", 

_{c) "lll par.agraph-6{b)(-iy) in line .eleven, capitalize ·the word HcHsh". 

(-vi) Paragraph 7. Exerch;e of'Righu; AguinsL PcrfOm1a11ce Assurance. 

(n)Doletc parngraph 7(h) in iw entirety and rcplucc with "Not Applicable". 

(b) Add "The" immediately before "Secured Party" in the firstJiue ofparagrnph 7(c). 

(vii) Pnragruph 9. Cove-nants:-:H.cpresontaliont; and \Narrunties; tvliscellaneous. 

,l\dd "Pnrty" i1n1nedialcly uft~r ui11curred by the other" in the I O'h line of paragr~ph 9( d). 
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The parties executing-this Collaterul Annex have.executed the I~EJ J\1astcr Po\ver Purchase and 
Sale Agrec1ncnt and lrnvc agreed m·; lo the Go111c111~ of thi.s Collateral Annex. 

Tille: Senior Vice Prc:-:iilclll 

EDFTNA 1·.20! J I 004 
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ATTACHMENT D 

SECTION 451.740 

BOND RENEWAL 

The Bond previously provided to the Illinois Commerce Commission is in full force and effect. 



ATTACHMENT E 

SECTION 451.740 

GENERAL LIABILITY INSURANCE 



ACORD" CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DDIYYYY) 

~ 2/27/2015 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, Subject to 
tile terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the 
certificate holder In lieu of such endorsementlsl. 

PRODUCER X\>N.!~CT Sylvia Keller 

Tompkins Insurance Agencies, Inc. P.l"!Q~~ - (610) 266-2579 Jf.M ...... 1. 

1240 Broadcasting Road 'i:...M .. ~b ...... skeller@tompkinsins.com 
P.O. Box 6707 INSUREA/S\ AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC # 
Wyomissing PA 19610 INSURER A :Am.co Insurance Comcanv 9100 
INSURED INSURER e :Deoosi tors Insurance Comoanv 2587 
AMERICAN POWERNET INSURER c :Hartford Fire Insurance Co. 9682 
45 Commerce Drive INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

I Wvomissinq PA 19610 INSURER F: 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER·14-15 COI REVISION NUMBER· 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS . 

INSR 
TYPE OF INSURANCE .. ~9b!8'!Yf,. I ,f.P.1;;1%'!.t:M'~ LIMITS LTR POLICY NUMBER 

GENERAL LIABILITY 
S?~RRENCE $ 1,000,000 -

1'. 3MMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY • 300,000 
A CLAIMS·MADE Ci] OCCUR 1lCPBP07125776430 8/28/2014 8/28/2015 MEO EXP (Any one person) $ 5,000 -

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY - $ 1,000,000 

GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000 -
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $ 2,000,000 
Xl POLICY n ~B.P.; n LOG • 
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY - i'l:':'.MBl~~~1~JNGLt: LIMI 1 

' 1 000 000 

A ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ - ALL OWNED 
~ 

SCHEDULED !lCPBP07125776430 ~/28/2014 ~/28/2015 
AUTOS AUTOS BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) • - x NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE x $ - HIRED AUTOS - AUTOS 

$ 

x UMBRELLA LIAB 
-10CCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $ 4,000,000 - I ClAtMS-MADE B EXCESS LIAB AGGREGATE $ 4,000,000 

OED I I RETENTION-'l ~CPCAMD7125776430 8/28/2014 8/28/2015 $ 

c WORKERS COMPENSATION x 1-~c STATL!.:. I IOJ!f-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY Y/N 
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE D 

N/A 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 500.000 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 8/10/2014 8/10/2015 (Mandatory Jn NH) l39WECLV8204 E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYE $ 500.000 
g~c~rtrcr8~ '81~'8PERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $ 500.000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS f LOCATIONS f VEHICLES (Attach ACORD 101, Addltlonal Remarks Schedule, If more space Is required) 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE Will BE DELIVERED IN 

Vada ta, Inc. 
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 

Attn: Risk Management 
PO Box 81226 

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 

Seattle, WA 96108-1300 

Michael Herr/SDK ~.2:./~~ 
' 

ACORD 25 (2010/05) © 1988·2010 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 
INS0251?01mo;1 n1 Th.a tr.r.nRn n::am1:1 ::inrf lnnn ::ir.a r.anii=t.ar.arf m::irltc nf tr.r.nRn 



ATIACHMENTF 

SECTION 451.750/451.760 

MANAGERIAL AND TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS 



About American PowerNet 

American PowerNet is an independent company not affiliated with any utility or 
marketer. We provides clients with supply-side management services designed to 
provide direct cost savings on electric purchased, and demand-side management 
strategies that reduce or shift energy use for overall lower energy bills. Today, 
American PowerNet's list of clients includes a number of Fortune 500 companies and 
large universities. American PowerNet assists these clients in procuring energy from 
RTOs in Texas, NY, and the PJM, MISO, & ISO NE regions. As a leader in electricity 
procurement, American PowerNet provides services for thousands of accounts 
nationwide. For more information, call (610) 372-8500 or visit on line at 
www.americanpowernet.com. 



Key Team Members 

R. Scott Helm, President 

Scott's energy expertise is built on over twenty-five years of experience in the energy 
industry, including eight years operating the successful energy auditing firm, Expense 
Audit & Consulting Co. (EA&C), which he founded. He merged EA&C with American 
Energy in anticipation of electricity deregulation and to offer his existing client base 
more energy-related services such as electric and natural gas procurement (supply­
side) and energy efficiency projects (demand-side). On behalf of American Energy, he 
conceived and developed American Energy's largest project to date, a propane-to­
natural gas conversion project at East Penn Manufacturing in Pennsylvania. Scott was 
also responsible for developing the company's Electric Aggregation Business. Scott 
has since purchased American Energy's assets forming his new company, American 
PowerNet. He was instrumental in guiding American PowerNet to the forefront of 
electric procurement in the U.S. American PowerNet enjoys a leading position in the 
retail electric aggregation business and is the first independent company in the country 
to develop and provide wholesale electric procurement services to large retail clients. 
Scott has presented numerous workshops on electric deregulation throughout the U.S. 
and in Singapore. He has written articles for trade publications and presented oral and 
written comments to several state Public Utility Commissions (PUC) and the Federal 
Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC). He earned a B.F.A. from the Rochester 
Institute of Technology, and is a member of the Association of Energy Engineers. 

David R. Butsack, Vice President, Logistics & Analysis 

David's proficiencies in the energy management field are widely diverse. He is 
responsible for overseeing utility bill analysis including cost analysis, tariff compliance, 
error correction, utility contract negotiations and savings analysis. In this capacity he 
has been responsible for the development of numerous internal and external data 
management and analysis functions, and the development of innovative charting 
products. Utilizing his nationwide energy procurement experience David has been 
instrumental in grasping the many intricacies of wholesale procurement and packaging 
them into the first service offering of its kind in the U.S. Prior to American PowerNet, 
David was Vice President of EA&C. He served on the Advanced Metering Working 
Group of the Pennsylvania PUC, as well as the Pennsylvania Jersey Maryland 
Interconnection (PJM) Planning and Engineering Committee, Tariff Advisory and 
Operating Committee. David earned a B.S. in Finance from Millersville University. 



Timothy G. Leigh, Vice President, Major Accounts 

Tim Leigh has over twenty-five years optimizing energy and risk management 
programs for Fortune 500 companies. Mr. Leigh's experience includes working in all 
sectors of the power industry. More specifically, he helped Southern Company (SO) 
set up their wholesale power trading business. Founded Service Resources Inc., one 
of the nation's most successful ESCOs, which was later sold to Ecova. He was a 
Senior Management Consultant for utilities at Accenture (ACN) building the retail 
trading desks for many of their affiliate business units. Lastly he has worked as the 
Director of Energy for Macy's (M) responsible for electricity and natural gas 
procurement for the nation's largest high-end department store chain. At American 
PowerNet, Mr. Leigh is responsible for customer service and business development. 

Eugene F. Carter, Jr., Controller 

Gene has more than twenty five years of relevant experience in various industries in 
for-profit and not-for-profit organizations as well as business assurance experience in 
public accounting. His experience, proficiency, expertise and leadership in accounting, 
finance and analysis is applied to the general management, compliance and reporting 
functions of the Company. Gene earned a B.S degree in Accounting from Bloomsburg 
University. Gene presently serves on two Boards of Directors. He is Vice-Chairman of 
Diamond Credit Union, a $360 million institution headquartered in Pottstown, 
Pennsylvania. Additionally, he serves at Delta Dental of Pennsylvania. Delta 
Pennsylvania is the center of a group of Delta Plans in the mid-Atlantic region of the 
Country. 

Brian M. Vayda, Vice President, Market Strategies 

With over twelve years experience in the energy industry, Brian has an extensive 
background in regulatory matters, securities consulting and financial reporting. His 
prior experience includes most recently, Manager, Regulatory Affairs for Strategic 
Energy and Senior Analyst, Market Settlements for PJM. In his former position, Brian 
was responsible for monitoring and influencing events and legislation within the energy 
industry at FERC, and in Pennsylvania and New Jersey, developing market rules, 
assisting in competitive pricing analysis for entrance into new competitive energy 
markets and assessing the potential impact of alternative wholesale procurement 
methods on sales, profit, risk and competitive position. At PJM, he provided support in 
the design, development, implementing and testing of new energy settlement systems, 
provided market settlement expertise to internal and external customers, conducted 
studies in the support of the development of new systems requiring a broad knowledge 
of the concept and practice of PJM markets and assisted the legal department in 
FERC filings. Brian was also responsible for monitoring bulk power system flows for 



reliability in the eastern interconnected region and maintaining adherence to PJM tariff 
rules for virtual market bids/offers and FTR positions. Brian's education includes an 
M.B.A. in Finance from Temple University and a B.S. in Accounting from King's 
College. 

Beverly A. Tunmer, Energy Analyst 

Beverly has over twenty years of experience as a management consultant providing 
various consulting services for utility and energy-related clients throughout the U.S. 
and abroad. She is responsible for obtaining and analyzing electricity usage 
information for existing and potential clients, providing market pricing options and 
comparisons, analyzing current EDC tariffs, reconciling energy supply invoices, 
preparing client billing on a weekly and monthly basis, providing customer support in 
various markets including PJM and ISO-NE, generating customer savings analysis and 
preparing regular American PowerNet newsletters. Beverly was instrumental in 
developing a Locational Marginal Pricing (LMP) computer model to facilitate the 
marketing and implementation of American PowerNet's business model. Prior to 
joining American PowerNet, Beverly worked for Management Resources International 
as a management consultant to utility companies including electric, gas, steam and 
water. Her responsibilities included cost allocation, revenue requirements analysis, 
rate studies, market analysis, budgeting and forecasting, preparation of engineer's 
reports, software training and computer model development. Ms. Tunmer earned an 
M.B.A. in Financial Management from St. Joseph's University and a S.S. in Operations 
Management from the Pennsylvania State University. 

Jason R. Fletcher, Vice President, Forecasting & Analysis 

Jason is responsible for the development and operation of our energy price forecasting 
models. He also heads our consulting efforts and develops custom software solutions 
for all parts of the company. Jason has nine years of experience in energy analysis, 
software modeling, and energy price forecasting. His prior experience includes most 
recently Manager of Customer Support for EPIS, Inc., developers of the 
AURORAxmp® forecasting model. In this role he was responsible for customer 
retention and resolution of all customer issues. He also completed numerous 
consulting projects and developed custom applications for the entire customer base. 
Previous to joining EPIS, Jason was with Avista Corporation, a large electricity and 
natural gas utility in the Pacific Northwest. During his time with Avista, Jason worked 
on a large range of projects. He developed conservation programs, provided analysis 
and testimony for regulatory filings, and completed numerous resource analyses and 
electric market studies. Jason holds a Bachelor of Science in Environmental Studies 
from Sonoma State University in Northern California. 



ANNUAL KILOWATT-HOUR REPORT 

APN STARFIRST, LP 



American ( ~)PowerNet 
- ,..-

January 27, 2015 

To: Illinois Commerce Commission, Barb McKenzie 

From: Linda Jablonski 

Re: APN Starfirst, LP - Statement of Kilowatt-Hours for 2014 

In connection with the Administrative Code Part 451, requiring Alternative Electric Suppliers to provide 

the number of KWHs sold, below please find the number of KWH sold for APN Starfirst, LP for the year 

2014. 

Total Number Sold: -
Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at (610) 372-8500 or 

!~ca rler (W i:I rne ri ca 11Q.9W e rnct .corn . 

Regards, 

Linda Jablonski, Office Manager 

/v'\onaging !he Energy [voluiion . .-. 

45 Commerce Drive, Wyomissing, PA 19610 • (610) 372-8500 • Fox (610) 372-9100 
www.arnericonpo¥1erne1.co1n 

~1 



Darrell Jenkins, Engineering Project Management 

Darrell has provided construction management, direct superv1s1on, and consulting 
services for several different sectors of end users in the construction market. Darrell 
spent the first ten years of his career in construction of wastewater treatment plants. 
Typical clients included the Pure Waters Division of the State of New York, and the 
Departments of Environmental Services of New Hampshire, Maine, and South 
Carolina. Over the last twenty years of his career, he has provided construction 
services to industrial and power generation customers including several major utilities 
such as Public Service Electric & Gas of New Jersey, Brooklyn Union Gas, Central 
Maine Power, and Public Service of New Hampshire. Darrell has managed the 
construction of more than ten power generation facilities with diverse fuel supplies 
including biomass, natural gas, heavy and light oils, and hydro as well as the 
construction of several complex processing facilities for Fortune 500 companies like 
WR Grace, International Paper, Lockheed Martin, and Georgia Pacific. 

Gregory G. Krajnik, Vice President, Market Operations 

Greg brings over 28 years of experience in bulk power system operations and 
wholesale energy markets. Trained in Electrical Engineering at Penn State University, 
his career has spanned electrical construction, system operation and dispatching, 
system planning and power system analysis and modeling; wholesale market 
development, training program development for both operations and competitive 
energy markets, operational accounting and settlements, and demand response 
operations and management and client management in wholesale energy markets. He 
has been continuously active in North American wholesale energy markets, PJM, 
NYISO, ISO-NE, MISO, ERCOT, CAISO, SPP, and IMO. 


